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CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Indcpendent Auditor’s Report

The Honorable Mayor and Board
Of City Commissioners

City of Dickinson

Dickinson, North Dakota

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-fype
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Dickinson, North
Dakota as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

-Management is responsible for the prepavation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal conirol relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with anditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptraller General of the United Stafes, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain andit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, inclnding the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal contro! relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order 1o design audit procedures that are appropriate in.
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An andit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, .
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Dickinson, Notth Dakota, as of December
31, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where, appticable, cash flows thereof for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. ‘

Correction of an Error
As discussed in Note 24 to the financial statements, certain errors resulting in the improper treatment of

retainage payable and understatement of long-term liabilities in regards to the net pension obligation were |

discovered during the current year. Accordingly, an adjustment has been made to beginning fund balance,
capital assets, and net position as of January 1, 2014, to correct the errors, Our opinion is not moditied
with respect to the matter. ‘

.Other Matlers

Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principies generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary
compatison schedules and other postemployment benefit schedules on pages 51 through 55 be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
.essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
-.operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of American, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements,
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion ar provide any assurance. :

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reparting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. Qur opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by the missing information.

Other Information

Our andit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Dickinson, North Dakota’s financial statements. The official directory and
combining nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the financial statements.




The combining nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly fo the underlying aceounting and other records used to prepare the basic

' financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit

of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in

. accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,

the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in afl material respects,
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole,

The official directory has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide atiy assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated July 15, 2015 on
our consideration of the City of Dickinson’s internal control over financial reporting and on cur fests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, condracts, grant agreements, and other matters,
'The putpose of that repott is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report Is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standayds in considering the City of Dickinson’s internal contral
over financial reporting and compHance.

Ciﬂ/dﬁz%mf

Bismarck, North Dakota
July 15, 2015



City of Dickinson
Staternent of Net Position

Total assets
Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Unearned revenne
Interest payable
Net OPEB obligation
Retainage payable
Non-current liabilities
Due within one year
Compensated absences
Bonds payable, net of premium
Notes payable :
Capital leases payable
Due in more than one year
Compensated absences
Bonds payable, net of premium
Notes payable
Capital leases payable
Net pension obligation
Accrued closure and post-closure care costs
Total Habilities

Met Position

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for special purposes
Unrestricted

Total net position

See Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2014
Governmental Business-type
Activitieg Activities Total
Assefs
. Cash and investments $ 29,711,313 § 765,480 $ 30,476,793
Accounts receivable 198,604 1,971,904 2,170,508
Taxes receivable 13,828 - 13,828
Special assessments receivable - current 1,254,131 1,254,131
Intergovernmental receivable 4,660,198 - 4,660,198
" Internal balances 4,595,676 (4,595,676) -
Note receivable 844,084 - 844,084
Inventory: - 254,897 254,897
Restricted cash and investments 2,333,286 556,428 2,829,714
Special assessments recelvable - noncuwrent portion 4,885,754 1,611 4,887,365
Capital assets not being depreciated .
Land 1,209,832 720,161 1,929,993
Construction in progress 33,636,352 79,812,537 113,448,889
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
Buildings and improvements 37,965,571 1,455,296 39,420,867
Improvementis other than buildings 28,591,179 14,081,539 42,672,718
Machinery and equipment 4,528,048 4271713 8,800,661
‘Total capital assets 105,931,882 100,341,246 206,273,128

§ 154,428,756

$ 99,295,890 $ 253,724,646

$ 842,468 $ 889,471 $ 1,731,939
208,243 70,278 278,521
6,200 - 6,200
156,779 245,265 402,044
45.405 - 45,405
1,586,719 1,562,731 3,149,450
285,578 82,263 367,841
1,111,265 I 1,111,265
. 3,314,000 3,314,000
254,650 610,589 865,239
412,227 76,317 488,544
16,152,179 - 16,152,179
- 45,596,538 45,596,538
772,634 2,228.394 3,001,028
556,260 . - 556,260
- 556,428 556,428
72,390,607 332320740 77,622,881
79,416,639 47,028,994 126,445,633
22,709,815 . 22,709,815
29,911,695 (2,965.378) 26,946.317

¥ 132,038,149

$ 44,063,616 $ 176,101,765




City of Dickinson
Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Net (Expense} Revene and
Program Revenues Changes in Net Position
perating CnpllTll
Charges for Grants ead Gl e Governmentat Business-Typo
FumetiensPropmms Erpenses Sorvices Contributions Canributiong Activides’ Activities Totel
nmary Lovarnment - Istaem———
Goversments! ezlivities
General govemment $ 5531415 0§ 2055813 § 62,861 % -5 (BAIZ64)  § - § (3412641
Public safety 6316024 489,284 508,987 - 53176F - 3,317,657
Pubfic works 5,800,952 - - 5,566,999 - 76,007
Cultuge and recreation 2,114,700 1,809,126 15,600 - -
Utbaa and economic development 1,399,477 - : - - -
Cther 216,234 - M - -
Tniterest on long-term debt 790,665 . - - - -
Totl govemmental agtivities 22260451 4,354,323 SH7RA 3,066,009 =
Business-type acfivifies
Water distribution ufility fund $,978,031 7,585,062 5,652,776 - . 7,259,307 7,259,807
Waslownter wtility fuind 2875345 2303437 1046 - - {480,882) (480,882)
Solid wasee vtility fund 3,912,574 4,312,018 2,898 - B ; 902,343
Storm water utility fund 284,662 232345 375, - n (51,942 (51,942]
Total business-type activities 50,517 [507e 842 6,651,005 5 - To%, 1.5’1'9'37'61,
Total primary govemment § 36311002 § 163791465 & 7.244043 § 5566999 (11,351,241} 7,629,326 3,121,919
’ General revenues
Taxes .
Property taxes levied For general pioposes 4,679,013 - 4,675,013
Properiy taxes levied for special pirposes 2,711,189 - 2,711,180
Cily sales tax 12,794,129 - 12,794,138
R lodging and occupansy taxes 2,041,994 - 2,041,004
O and gas produgtion (ax 16,356,751 . 16,856,751
State aid and ravenues nos restrdoted 1o specific programs 2.455,505 - 2,455,505
Ut icted interesi and § Ircome 767,247 105,765 373,012
Cther revenue 681,606 934,922 1,615,728
Total peneral ravenes 42,986,525 1,035,387 24,026,412
Gain on disposal of fixed mssels 173,885 $6,113 241,998
Transfers 169,124 (169,124 1 -
Change in net position 31,980,293 8,566,202 45,546,495
Net Pasition - January 1, av previowsly reported N 100,551,959 35497414 136,049.3°1)
Restutement (Nole 24) {494,103} - {494,103)
Net Fosition - January [, 53 resiated 106 057,856 35497414 3133,355.270
Net Position - December 31 § 132,033,149 3 44,063 616 $_176,191,763

< See Notes fo Financial Statements 6
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: City of Dickinson
Balance Sheet-Governinental Funds

December 31, 2014
Major Furils
Cammpnity 1013 - Other Total
Ono Percenl Oil & G Cener Duitding Annpal Sleeol Sales Tax Gove e tdal Govermrntl
Genernl Sales Tax Prduction Project Lonstuction Drofeet Fund Reyetue Bond Funde, Frnds
Assels
Cash and fovestmanols § 2,167 & 387590 & - s -8 448285 § - F 201§ 2EUS39E § 29z
Acgounls reeelvible 246835 . - - - 8,003 - 5918 19604
“Taxes reoaivabiz 12352 - - - - - - 1418 11,928
Special assssiments receivable - - - - - 9597 - 1,244,534 1,254,133
Intérgovenmental recelvables 73,217 798,10 24264M . - - - 656,746 4,660,158
Note roceivablo 344,084 - - - - - - - £44,084
Intorford reseivabies 12,759,525 4585676 - - - - 9,5% 12,365,187
Advances to other funds 1,080,060 - - - . - . - 3,000,060
Ected cash and § L] - = - - - L.620.500 842785 2333286
Total assels 3 17521428 & 2,382,007 5 24264 § - H 14,682 854 - 117.50=B=, 3 934,743 § 5,2& Sﬁsﬂ_ﬂ%
Liabilitios )
ACCounis payabla § (LTI - 3 - 3 858§ 633,386  § 3159 % - $ 15§ 232418
Acenzd payroll 200,00F - - . - - - : 5,130 208,24
Inieifind payables . - 834,012 8,223,657 - 3,685,255 - 9,856 1,762,451
Relafage payable - - - 1,314,260 272,009 . - 1,586,719
Advarces lrom ofher fonds - . - - - - - 3,006,00¢ 3,000,090
Uneamad rovenue - - - - - - - 6,200 6,200
“Total Tabilifles 310,968 . /54047 82724.515 2003058 3959424 - 3038105 IRA10.081
Defered Inflows of Resoivos
Enavailable progenty taves 12,352 - - - . - . 147 13,538 -
Unavailable speclal assessinent
Lax¢y = - - - - 9,597 - L4534 L254,131
Total defermed inflows of
TSOUNes 12.352 - - . . 9597, - 1,246.010 1.167.959
Furd Balances
Nonspendable - 3,844,084 - - - . . - " - 3,844,084
Restricted - 9,282,007 1,572,482 - - " - 971,743 2,140,583 27093815
Lommitied - - - . u « - 1,150,058 1,156,058 :
Assipied 4,830,612 - - ~ 12,679,758 . . - 339,517 17,948,287 3
Unassigred, 3,403,471 - o (3.324.515) - £3,351.021) = 577,359 {6,350, 324} ’
Tolad fund balanes J7.178.167 2282007 1572483 {8224,515) 12,579 753 [.851421) 271,743 952,399 39,363, 51
Total Hebilities, drfemed :
inflaws of resoutces, |
and find Balasces s Hsade 8 S282003 8 2426454 & - 3 wemasi 3 s & 9.‘{14.‘?41 S e 5236808 8 SBEE]S0

See Notes to Financial Statements 7




City of Dickinson
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds —Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2014

Total Fund Balances - Goveramental Funds $ 39,303,520

Total net position reported for government activities in the statement
of net position is different because

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and are not reporfed in the governmental funds

Cost of capital assets $ 159,336,516
Less accumulated depreciation {53,404,634)
Net capital assets 105,931,882

Property taxes and special assessments will be collected after

year-end, but are not available soon enough to pay for the

-current period's expenditures and arve reported as deferred

inflows in the funds. Uncertified special assessments are

reported on the statement of net position - - 6,153,713

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the

costs of certain activities as fuel services to individual funds.

The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are included

in the governmental activities in the statement of net position. 350,606

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental
activities are not due and payable in the current perind and
accordingly are nof reported as fund liabilities. All
liabilities-both current and long-term are reported in the
statement of net position. Balances at December 31, 2014 are ’
Interest payable ' (136,779)

Compensated absences (697,805)

Bonds payable, net of premium (17,263,444)

Capital leases payable {1,027,284)

Net pension obligation : (556,260)
Total long-term liabiiities {19,701,572)
Total net position of govermmental activities $ 132,038,149

See Notes to Financial Statements 8



City of Dickinsen
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fuad Batances — Govertenental Funds
Youar Ended December 31, 2014

Rovermies

Texes

Liscases, permite and foen
Trlergovarnmental mvenues
Charges for services

Finex and fosfells

Special nsresiments

Interest ond fnvestment incone:
Domtions

_ Mizeellaneous revenves

Tatel ovenoes
Expenditores
Curent
Qe government
Pubfjorafoty
Public wasis
Colivre and msrealion
Urtbsn and esenamie davelopment
Other
et servieo
Principal
Iiterest end senice ehnsges
Capital ounlay
“Fale] tpendibres
Recers (Deficincy) of Rvahites
aver Expenditures
Olher Finazsing Sonreen (Uses)
Bonds irseed
Capitul fomse pddidions
Sals of assels
Transfers in
Transfers ol
Toial other fimmnélog sourss and uses
‘et Chenge in Fund Balonces
Yand Bafance - Jouary 7, an
revipwsly reported
Testatement (Noln 24y
Fund Palance - Jamary 1, 5% restated
Fund Betanss - Detsmber 3%

Miafor Funds
DmMUaRy

2013 Other Total
One Percent Ol & Coa Cenler Buildiag Ana| Street Salos Taex {overmmenlal Gavemmental
Geteenl Sales Tox Production Profest Construction. Prajecl Fund Revento Bord Lands Fundy

5 4233261 § 8,529,419 H LI 3 H ¥ - « § &lRsE 3 13,514,296
1,705,050 - - - - - - - 1,705,150
1884351 - 13.456,931 - - - - 232,002 25,155,974
2,035,913 - - - v - To4,076 2,159,989
473,280 - - - - - - 15,004 4E9.284

- . - - - 433,901 - FR2158 2,896,599

577,230 120,152 - 1,i% - 25058 - 43,328 TE1242

- - - - - 1,635,133 £849,970 - 2,689,307

280,583 - - 250,983 LH 5000 - 157,583, IGTEED
131933598 8,648,571 1B 856,731 252,181 12,881 2,153,332 1,195,970 1470 YA
3,162,511 - - - - - - . 35,6258
5566238 - - - . - - 193,551 L054359
2,419,485 - . - 62,218 14,649 - 44361 2,561,313
354,543 - - - - - - 1.114,393 1,468,134

- 138827 - - - - - 1L 1,399477

206,540 . . - - . - B 206,540

- - - - - - 1,050,000 259,354 1302554

- - - - - - 672,753 165, %% 819,528

521,890 - - 15825502 12,538 958 2512468 - 1336 €75 39,745,178
4,631,407 1,387,837 - 15.825.303 12,608 158 667,009 L2215 3,020,031 SETI6504
£1,336,349) 7,26).744 18456351 £15,593,620) (12588 287y {1.503370 (672,789} &.898.439 (3,095.350)
. - . - - - - 1033257 4,092,287

. - - - . - - 669,951 669,654

182,368 - . - . - - - 182,369
293512 - - - 2ATILES 2,350,000 2,571,000 100,97 AB255,714
81,54 £5,136,000) (25418,000) - I - - (5,634.098) (ABSLES0D)
2354447 {2,136,000) £25418:000) - 27,737,125 2350000 3,522,050 3.769.583) 1,639,599
1018408 1,874,256} {6.961.249) (15573,12%) 15,148,878 (5,163,777 5859211 3,100,556 {3405531)
16238,404 11196263 853373} T48.607 (3,619497) 1112156 2,815,532 {24825 A153T,139
[8.345) - - - {849.581) - - z (922928)
16,160,039 £1.156,263 8533731 1346607 (2.469.050) 1312156 LEEISSIZ [RLLET)) 42705211
§ 17478167 3 9.28%007 = L572482 5 {824,515 § 12679358 § ﬂ.BSléﬂE 9,TH4. 13 3 952293 L3 39.303.520

See Notes to Financial Statements




City of Dickinson

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental

Funds to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

The change in net position reporied for governmental activities in the
statement of activities is different because

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. Fowever, in
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current year

Current year capital outlay

Donated capital assets
Current year depreciation expense

The net effect of various sale transactions involving assets is to decrease

* net position. In the Statement of Activities, only the gain or loss on the disposal

of assets is reported, whereas in the governmental funds, the proceeds from
the sale of assets increase financial resources,

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use
of eurrent financial resources and are not reported as expendifures in
governmental funds.

Net decrease in interest payable

Net increase in compengated absences

Net increase in net pension obligation

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
povernmental funds, but the issnance increases long term labilities in the
statement of net position. .

Government funds report the effect of bond premiums when debt is first
issued, whereas these amounts are amaortized in the statement of activities,

Repayment of long-term debt principal is an expenditure in the
goverimental fimds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilitles in the
statement of net posiiion.

Some revenues reported on the statement of activities are not reported as
revenues in the governmental funds since they do not represent available

resourcos fo pay current expenditures. This consists of the increase in taxes

and special assessments receivable,

The net revenue of certain activities of the internal service funds is reported

with governmental activities

Change in net position of governmental activities

See Notes to Financial Statements

8 (3.405,691)

$ 38,093,308
1,651,870

(4,284,372) '
35,460,306

{6,484)

8,789
(28,301)

{62,157)
(81,669)

(1,763,218)

47,863

1,309,554

234,481

185,151
$ 31,980,293



City of Dickinson
Statement of Net Position — Proprietary Funds

December 31, 2014
Business Type Actiyitics - Entexprise Funds Govemmental
: ) Activilies -
Water Wastowaler Solid Other Hternal
Distribution Utility Waste Utility Proprietary Service
Utility Fund Fund Fund Fund Total Fuads
. Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivaleats 3 - % - 8 - 3 - 3 - § 399,061
Investments - - 526,677 238,803 765,480 -
© Accounts reeeivable 1,090,138 359,640 486,280 35,796 1,971,904 -
Interfund receivables 6,169,914 - 2,342,284 142,846 8,655,044 -
[nventory 223,195 19,889 - 11,813 254,807 -
Total eurrent assets 7,483,207 379,529 3,355,241 429,258 11,647,325 399,061
Nonchtrent assels
Restrioted investments - - 556,428 - 556,428 -
Speciat assessments receivable 1,611 - - - 1,611 -
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land £3,040 574,029 63,002 - - T20,161 -
Construction in progress 9,375,640 70,350,403 20,749 65,745 79,812,537 -
Capital assets {net of accumulated
depreciation}
Buildings and improvements 652,339 62,307 740,650 - 1,455,296 -
Improvements other than buildings 8,521,394 4,294,776 1,211,020 54,349 14,081,539 -
Machinery and equipment 172,950 748,792 3,305,662 44269 4,271,713 -
Total noncurrent assets 18,807,014 76,030,307 5,897,001 164,363 100,899,285 -
Totaf assets $ 26290311 § 76409836 § 9252842 § 593621 M Sm%
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable § 300,783 % 547252 % 36436 § 5000 $ 880471 % 3,050
Acerued payroll 27,957 - 31,657 10,624 70,278 -
Interfiund payables - 13,250,720 “ - 13,250,720 -
- Triterest payable . 245,265 - - 245,265 -
Retainage payable 696,750 263,981 - - 1,562,731 -
Compensated absences 16,982 16,797 435,535 2,949 82,263 -
MNofes payable - 3,3§4,000 -, - 3,314,000 -
Capitat leases payable 17,877 103,283 482,429 - 610,589 -
Net OPEB obligation - - - - - 45403
Total current liabilities 1,060,389 18,343,208 603,057 13,573 20025317 48,455
Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences 18,323 15,034 41,776 1,184 16,317 -
Notes payable - 45,596,538 - - 45,596,538 -
Capital leases payable . 430,032 1,798,362 - 2,228,394 -
Acorued closure and postelosure liability - “ 556,428 - 556,428 -
Total roncurrent liabilities 18,323 46,041 604 2306 566 1,184 48.457,677 -
Total liabitities 3 1078712 3 64384902 § 2999623 § 19,757 § 68482994 § 43,455
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 3 18090776 § 25720473 0§ 3053382 % 164363 $ 47028994 % Coo-
Unrestricted 7,120,823 (13,695,539} 3,199,837 409,501 (2,965,378) 350,606
Tatal net position $ 25211,599 § 12024934 § 6253219 $ 573864 § 44,063,616 § 350,606
See Notes to Financijal Statements 11




. City of Dickinson
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position — Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Business Type Activities - Enterprise Fundg Gover

Solid Activities -
Water ‘Wagtowatar Wisie Other Intﬂ.mal
Distiibution - hility litity Proprietary Service
Dltility Fund Puad Fund Furd Total Funds
Operating revennes
Sales $ 7,582282 § 2392072 $ 4812018 § 232345 § 15018717 § 117,212
Charpes for services 2,780 1,345 - - 4,125 -
Total operating revemzes 7,585,062 2,393,417 4812018 232,345 15,022,842 117,212
Operating expenses
Salaries 228,638 531,727 1,142,013 107,478 2,009,836 -
Bmployment cost 82,576 168,069 A14,594 34,385 699,624 {97,038)
Administrative and general 703,000 228,000 458,600 . 24,000 1,413,000 -
Supplies 117,950 102,402 696,817 22,089 939,348 411,819
Services 210,572 341,176 207,823 35,045 794,616 -
Maintenance 172,238 144,392 439,203 24,697 780,528 -
Water purchase 4,553,083 - - - 4,553,083 -
Inventory expense 288,080 9,206 - - 297,286 -
+ Miscsllaneous 7,342 2,541 3272 - 13,155 -
Drepreciation 613,092 422226 467,272 36,968 1,539,558 B
Employee distributions - - - - = 45,502
Total operating expenses " 6,976,569 1,949,820 3,828,994 284,662 13,040,054 364,283
Operating income (loss} 608,493 443,588 983,024 {52,317y 1,982 788 {247 071)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest and investment income 64,169 - 36,612 4,984 105,765 7,214
Interest expense and service charges (1,462) (925,516) (28,050) - {955,028} -
- Closure and post closure costs - - (55,529) - (55,529 -
Meter and meter repirs sales 6,260 - - - 6,260 -
Intergovernmental revenue 6,652,776 1,046 2,898 375 6,657,095 -
Miscellaneows revenue 421,150 242,983 208,430 55,299 927,862 -
Gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets - - 67,920 (1,807 66,113 - -
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 7,142,893 (681,487} 232,281 58,851 6,752,538 7210
Income (loss) before fransfers 7,751,386 (237,399 1,215,305 6,334 8,735,326 (239,861)
" Transfers in - - - - “ 425,012
Transfers out ) {7.235) (9,168} {151,880) (841 {169,124} -
Change in net position A 7,744 151 (247.067) 1,063,425 5,693 8,566,202 185 151
Net position - Yannary 17,467,448 12,272,001 3,189,794 568_,171 35,497,414 165,455
Net position - December 31 $ 25211599 § 12024934 & 6253219 & 573,864 § 44063616 $§ 350,606

See Notes to Financial Statements i2



City of Dickinson
Statement of Cash Flows —Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Husiness Type Actlvities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities -
Whater Wastewnlor Solid Other Internal
Distribution Utility Wasie Proprietacy Service
Utility Fund Foud Fund Fand Total Funds
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
. Cashreceived from customers and users -§ 70610700 % 2237552 % 4735137 § 218,780 § 253,169 % 117,212
Cash paid te suppliers (6,140,867) (1,554,066) (2,218,103} (113,458) (10,026,534) (420,56%)
Cash pzid to omployess (285,288) {713,861) (1,566,772} (132,879) (2 698,800) £50,625)
Net cash provided (used) by
apesating activitics 635,543 (30,315} 950,262 (27,597) 1,527,835 (353,974)
Cash Flows from Noncapital
Financing Activities
Intergovernmental revenue ’ 6,652,776 1,046 2,898 375 6,657,095 -
Interfund receivables/payables (169,914) 6,088,702 (2,342,284) (142,846) 3,433,658 -
Fransfers from ather fiinds - - - - - 425,012
Transfers to other funds (7,235) (9,168) {151,880) (841 (169,124) -
Nenoperating revenues 27410 242,583 276,350 55,299 1,002,042 -
Net cash provided (used) by )
noneapital Fancing activities 6,903,037 6,323,563 (2,214,916) {88,013} 10,923 671 425,012
Cash Flows from Capital and
Related Financing Activitics .
‘Principal pmyments on notes payable - (1,666,001} - - (1,566,001} -
Proceeds from issusnce of notes - 34,169,831 - - 34,169,831 -
Principal paymenis on capital leases (34,25%) £121,8%0) {326,938) - (303,081} -
. Interest payments (1,462} {939,653) (28,050 - (969,195} -
Purchase of capitsf assets (8,038,509) {37,735,445) (94,250 {36,957) (45,905,161} -
Net cash used by capital and related
financing activities (3,094, 224) (6,293,188) _ (449,238) {36,951 (14,873,607} -
Cash Flows from Investing
Activities
Pragecds from sales aixd matorities
of investments 390,349 - - - 390,349 -
Purchase of invesiments - - (468,099 (79,526) (548,925) -
Interest and investment income 64,169 - 36,612 4,684 105,765 7250
Net ¢ash provided (used) by
investing activities 454,518 “ (432,387) (74,942) {52,811) 7,210
Met Change In Cash and
‘Cash Equivalents (101,124) - (2,146,279 (227,509) (2,474,912) 78,248
Cash and Cash Eqaivaients,
17172034 E01,§24 - 2,146,279 227,509 2474.012 320,813
Cash and Cash Eqaivalents, .
1273172014 5 v 3 - 8 - & - § « & 399,061

See Notes to Financial Statements 13




City of Dickinson
Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Business Type Activitics - Enterprise Funds Governraentat
) Activities -
Water Wastewater Bolid Other Intemal
Dhstribution Usitity Waste Froprietary Service
Utility Fund Fund Fund Fund Total Funds
Reconeitigtion of Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities
Operating income (loss) $ 608,493 § 443,588 § 083024 % (52317) § 1982788 § (247,871)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
{Loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities .
Diepreciation expense 613,092 422226 467,272 36,968 1,535,558 -
Change in Assets and Einbilities
Receivables’ (523,362) (155,865) {76,881) {13,565} (769,673} -
Inventories : (51,899) 2,553 - {11,813} (61,159) “
Comgensated absences Hability 6,695 2512 5,728 1,090 16,125 -
Accounts payable (36,705) (728,812} (412,988) 4,146 (1,174,359} (8,742}
Accrued payroll 19,231 (16,877} (15,893) 7,854 (5.445) “
Net OPEB obligation - - - - - {98,161)
Net cash provided (used) by operating
activities 3 635545 § (30,375) § 950,262 % (27597 $ 1,527,835 § (353.974)
Non-Cash Disclosures
Purchase of equipment in exchange for
sapital lease $ - & .8 2179619 § - §F z2Imstd § -

See Notes fo Financial Statements 14



City of Dickinson

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments, at fair value
Corporate bonds
-US government bonds
Mortgage backed securities
Mutual finds
Equity dividend focus
Money market
Total investments
Accounts receivable
Total assets
Liabilities
" Due to other parties
Net Position
Held in trust for peﬁsion benefits

Total net position

See Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2014
City of Dickinson Agency
Pension Plans Funds

$ 88,607 $ 2306601

961,453 .
157,806 -
116 .
7,650,701 .
3,526,974 :
256,831 -
12,553,881 -

- 85,078

5 12.642,488 3 2391679

5 - $ 2,391,679

12,642,488 -

$ 12,642,488 § 2391679
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City of Dickinson
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Additions

Contributions

Employer

Employes
Total contributions

Investrnent earnings
Net increase in fair valoe of investments
Interest and dividends
‘Total investment earnings

Total additions

Deduetions

 Administration expense

Benefits
Total deductions

Change in Net Position
Net Position - Jamuary |

Net Position - December 31

See Notes to Financial Statements

City of
Dickinson
_Pension Plans _

$§ 1,237,545
143,300
1,380,845

7,250
626,902
634,152

2,014,997

74,722
1,139,650
1,214,372

800,625
11,841,863

$ 12,642,488
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City of Dickinson
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 1 - Principal Business Activity and Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Dickinson, North Dakota, operates under a Home Rule Chatter. The financial stateraents of the City
have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard setting body for establishing governmenta! accounting and tinancial reporting principles. The more
significant of the government’s accounting policies are described below,

Financial Reporting Entity

The accompanying financial statements present the activities of the City of Dickinson, The City has considered all
potential component units for which the City is financially accountable and other organizations for which the
nature and significance of their relationships with the City are such that exclusion would cause the City’s financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has set forth criteria
to be considered in determining financial accountability. This criteria includes appointing a voting majority of an
organization’s governing body and (1) the ability of the Dickinson to impose its will on that organization or (2)
the potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on
the City of Dickinson.

Based on these criterla, there are no component units to be included within the City of Dickinson as a reporting
entity.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
Government-Wide Statements

The statement of net position and the statemment of activities display information about the primary government,
the City of Dickinson. These statements include the financial activities of the overall government, except for
fiduciary activities. Eliminations have beens made to minimize the double-counting of infernal activities. These
statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City, Governmental activitics
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-
type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each
function of the City’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a)
fees, fines and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capiial requirernents of a particular program.
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presenfed as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s funds including its fiduciary funds. Separate
statements for each fund category-governnental, proprietary and fiduciary are presented. The etnphasis of fund

financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All
remaining governmental fands are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.
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City of Dickinson
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

" Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated
with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up
essentially equal values, Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from
nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities. :

Financial Statement Presentation
'The City reports the following major governmental funds;

General Fund — This is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

- One Percent Sales Tax Fund — This fund accounts for the use of the City sales tax for debt service, capital facility,
job creation, RSVP and Eldercare within the City.

Oil & Gas Production Fund — This fund is used to account for the money received from the state and federal
government that are directed to be used to ajleviate the effects of oil impact in the area.

Community Center Project Fund — This fund is used fo account for the expansion and improvement of the West
River Community Center campus. :

Building Construction Fund - This fund is used to account for capital projects throughout the City,

- Anrwal Street Project Fund - This fund is used to account for the annual street, sidewalk, and trails projects
throughout the City. .

2013 Sales Tax Reverue Bond Fund — This fund is used to account for the bond debt service {ssued and de‘bt
service payments made for the City,

The City reports the following major enterprise funds;
Water Disiribution Utility Fund — This fund accounts for the operations of the water distribution system for the

City of Dickinson. This fund also accounts for the capital assets of the water treatment plant which benefits the
-Southwest Pipeline project which is operated by the Southwest Water Authority.

Wastewater Utility Fund — This fund accounts for the Opefaﬁons of the sewer system for the City of Dickinson.

Solid Waste Utility Fund — This fund accounts for the activities of the solid waste collection and disposal system
within the City of Dickinson.
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City of Dickinson
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Inteinal Service Fund — This fund accounts for providing fueling services provided to other departments of the
City of Dickinson on a cost reimbursement basis. This fund is also used fo charge the cost of the City mechanic to
the individual funds.

Pension Trust Funds — These funds account fot the activities of the City of Dickinson Employee’s Pension Plan,
Police Pension Plan and the Firemen’s Pension Plan which accumulates resources for pension benefit payment to
qualified city employees.

Agency Funds — These funds account for assets by the City in & custodial capacity as an agent on behalf of others.
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Non-Exchange Transactions

The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements ate reported using the economic
resources measurement focus. The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using
the accrual basis of accounting, Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time
liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which
the City gives {or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property
taxes, grants, entiflements and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the
fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the
fiscal year in which all eligibility requiremerits have been satisfied.

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The City
considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty
days after year-end. Special assessments, intergovernmental revenues, charges for services and investment income
are considered susceptible to accrual. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except
for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are
recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are
reported as other financing sources.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-
reimbursement grants and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there is both restricted
and unrestricted net position available to finance the program. It is the City’s policy to first apply cost-
reimbursement grant resources to such programs, and then to general revenues.

As a general rule, the City has elitninated the effect of interfund activity from the government-wide financial
statements, Exceptions to this rule are when various charges exist between different functions of government (i.e.
water and sewer charges to other various functions of the City). Elimination of these charges would distort direct
costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned,
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City of Dickinson
Notes to Financial Staternents
December 31, 2014

Proprietary funds report operating revenues and expenses separately from nonoperating items. Operating reventes
and expenses generally result from providing services or producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fimd’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise funds
and internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
and internal service funds include the costs of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenucs and
oxpenses.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits and highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of three months or less,

The investments of the City’s governmental and enterprise funds, during the year ended Decernber 31, 2014,
- consisted of bonds, money market accounts, mutual funds, and mortgage backed securities stated at fair value.

Investments of the pension trust funds consisted of bonds, mutual funds, money market accounts, and mortgage
backed securities. The investments of the pension trust funds are stated at fair value at December 31, 2014.

Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (current portion) or “advances to/from other funds
(non-current portion).” All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.”
Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities ate reported in
. the povernment-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account
in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable
financial resources.

All real estate is assessed on current value as of February 1 of each year. Property taxes are attached as an
enforceable lien on the real estate and become due on January 1 of the year following the assessment date. A 5%
reduction of taxes is allowed if taxes are paid in full by February 15. To avoid being delinquent, one-half of taxes
due must be paid by March T and the remaining balance paid by October 15.

Restricted Assets

Certain resources sef aside for debt service in the 2013 Salss Tax Revenue Bonds and 2014 Water and Sales Tax
Revenue Bonds fund are classified as restricted assets because their use is limited by bond and loan covenants.

The City has restricted certain investments to be used for landfill ¢losure in the Solid Waste Ulility fund. The City

will close the Iandfill at the end of its useful life and will use the testricted investments to pay for the cost of the
closure and required monitoring,
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City of Dickinson
Notes to Financizal Statements
December 31, 2014

" Capital Assets

Capital assets include plant and equipment, Assets are reported in the governmental activities column in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual
cost of $5,000 or more. Such assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
General infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 1980 are reported at historical cost using deflated
replacement cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated {air market value at the date of donation. The
costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or matcrially extend assets lives
are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and unprovements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets is not capitalized.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated in the proprietary funds of the City using the straight-line method
. over the following estimated vseful lives:

Buildings and improvements 50 years
Improvements other than buildings 20-50 years
Machinery and equipment ’ 5-20 years

Compensated Absences

Full time employees are granted vacation benefits from 40 to 192 hours per year depending on tenure with the

City. Employees can acerue up to a maximum of 240 hours of vacation at year end. Upon termination of

~ employment, employees will be paid for vacation benefits thal have accrued at the employee’s rate of pay on their
last day of employment. Sick leave benefits accrue at a rate of 8 hours per month, Unused sick leave benefits are

allowed to accumulate indefinitely. Upon termination of employment or retirement, unused sick leave will be paid

at a rate of 25% of the employee’s hourly wage at the time of separation for all unused days. Vested or

accumulated leave is reported in the long-term debt account group and in the enterprise funds.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial siatements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmentai activities,
business-lype activities or propristary fund type statement of net position. Bond preminms and discounts, as well
as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported in the
governmental funds and expensed in the year incurred. :

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
‘soutees. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reporied as debt service expendifures.
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City of Dickinson -
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Fund Equily

In the fund financial statements, fund balance for governmental funds are reported in five classifications that
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific
purposes for which amounts i those fimds can be spent:

Nonspendable includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are cither (a) not in spendable form or (b)
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricied results when constraints placed on the use of resources are either (a) externally imposed by creditors,
granters, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or (b) imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed consists of amounts that caz: only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by
formal action (simple majority vote) of the City’s highest level of decision-making authority (City Commission)
and cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City removes or changes the specified use by taking the same.
type of action it employed to previcusly commit the amounts.

Assigned consists of amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are
neither restricted nor committed, as expressed by the finance director to which the City’s commission has
delegated the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes.

Unassigned is the residual classification for the general fund and represents the amount that has not been assigned

to other funds and that has not boen restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general
fund

* When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available,
restricted fund balance is considered to have been spent first unless legal requirements disallow it. When
committed, assigned and unassigned Tunds are available for expenditures, committed amounts are reduced first,
followed by assigned amounts and then unasszgned amounts unless the govermng board has provzded otherwise
in ifs commitment or assignment actions,
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City of Dickinson

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2014
. . . . .
As of December 31, 2014, the specific purposes of the fund balance classifications consisted of the following:
Camnienity 2043 Other TFotal
Ons Percent Oil & Gas Centor Hullding Aanual Strest Salor Tax Covernmental Guvenunental
General Sales Tax Produgtion Project Constmotion Praject fund Bavenus Bond Fuads Funds
Fund Balsnees
 Nonspendablo
‘Nole receivabie $ 849089 & - 3 - % - % - § - 3 - 5 - % 244,084
Advances to other fmds 3,000,600 - - - - - - = 3,800,600
Toln! dabil 3,844,084 N . . N - T R 3,864,084
Reauicied for
Deby, propery It rednclions
and infrastructure - 4,641,003 - - - . - 1,050,435 5,651,438
‘Urban and econnmio devalopment - 2,784,602 - - - - LRTHME 031,764 13.450,10%
Job crcalion and genior cltizen -
activitios . 1,856,402 - . . . - - 1,856,402
Git Impscicd oporallons . - 1,57243% . - - - - 1572482
Dowatown districts - - - - - . - 179384 179384
Toted restricted 9.282. 067 1,572,482 - - - 9.714.743 2,140,583 25,790,815
Commied for -
“Vishor promotion - - - - - 581,600 591,690
Wastewater bickup cesarve - - - - . 17,125 17,k25
Dobt servico - - - - - v 413432 433,432
FHospitality - - - - - - . 37311 137811
Totel committcd - - - - - - LE3505% 1,15005%
Assigned for
Foturg find 4526827 - - - - - - - 4,526,821
Cemeisry 95,320 - - - - - - - 295,320
Urbaz forestny 9,610 - - - - - 91,650
" Assetforfeibip 16443 - - - - - . - 15442
Historia preservation 412 - - - - - - - 452
- Streat projocts E - - - - - - . .
Libery - - - - - - - 187,46 187,946
Delst sepvies - - - - - - - 133,021 133821
Building eensiniction - - - - 12,679,758 . . - 12,679,758
Elks project . - . - . . 10,523 10,529
Praliie outpost pavilien project - - - - - - £020 6021
Total assigned 4,530 612 - - - 12,679,758 - F39517 17.240887
- Unesslaned 8403478 M - . (3.124.515) . (3,852,421} {2,677.859) (6350324
‘Total fund balances § 7178067 § 9282007 § ES72482 § {(812451) S 1267078 § g.&ilidzlg $ 574742 5 052,259 § 29303520

Note2 -~ Legal Compliance

Expenditares over Appropriations

At December 31, 2014, the following funds had expenditures that exceeded budgefed appropriations:

General fund 3 (294,671)
Grant fund {366,216)
2013 sales tax revenue bond fund (150,759)
2014 water and sales tax revenue bond fund (142,503)
Capital leases fund (647,751)
Storm water fund {25,419}
Wastewater treatment fund (67,784)

All funds with expenditures exceeding appropriations will be covered by excess revenues. No remedial
action is anticipated or required.
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- Deficit Fand Balances
" At December 31 , 2014, the following funds had a deficit balance:
Community Center Project $(8,224,515)
Annual Street Project {3,851421)
Impact Fee Capital Projects (2,677,859)

The Community Center Project deficit, Annual Street Project deficit, and Impact Fee Capital Project deficit will
be eliminated by transfers from other funds as funding sources are decided for the community centar building and
street, sidewalk, and trail projects.

Note3 - Deposits and Investments

In accordance with North Dakota Statutes, the City maintains deposits at the depository banks designated by the
governing board. All depositories are members of the Federal Reserve System.

Deposits must either be deposited with the Bank of North Dakota or in other financial institutions situated and
doing business within the state. Deposits, other than with the Bank of North Dakota, must be fully insured or
bonded. In liew of 2 bond, a financial institution may provide a pledge of securities equal to 110% of the deposits
not covered by insurance or bonds,

Authorized collateral includes bills, notes, or bonds issued by the United States government, its agencies or
instrumentalities, all bonds and notes guaranteed by the United States government, Federal land bank bonds,
bonds, notes, warrants, certificates of indebtedness, insured cettificates of deposit, shares of investment
companies registered under the Investment Companies Act of 1940, and all other forms of securitles issued by the
State of North Dakota, its beards, agencies or instramentalities or by any county, city, township, school district,
park district, or other political subdivision of the state of North Dakota, whether payable from special revenues or
supported by the full faith and credit of the issuing body and bonds issued by another state of the United States or
such other securities approved by the banking board.

At year end December 31, 2014, the City’s carrying amount of deposhs was $16,275,518, the agency fund’s
catrying amount of deposits were $2,306,601, the pension plan’s carrying amount of deposits was $88,607 and
the bank balance was $21,588,192. Of the bank balances, $250,000 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance.
The remaining balance was collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s agent in the
govertunent’s name, ‘ '
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Invesiments

As of December 31, 2014 the City’s general investments had the following investments and maturiiies:

Mahurity

Market Less than 1-5 6-10 More than

Value 1 Year Years Years 10 Years
US government bonds §11,527,267 3% - $4384,607 $ 2,905,861 34,236,799
Mortgage backed securities 1,354,633 - - - 1,354,633
Mutual funds 125 125 - - -
Money matket 4,208,964 4,208,964 - - -
Totals $17,090,989 § 4,209,089 $ 4,384,607 § 2,905,861  $5,591,432

As of December 31, 2014 the City’s general investments had the following credit ratings:
S&P Rating
Market Not
Valug Rated AAA AdT AA- A A

U8 government bonds $11.527267 § 3638731 § - $7.888536 % - % $ -
Mortgage backed securities 1,354,633 - 1,354,633 - - -
Mutueal funds 125 125 - - - -
Money market 4.208.964 4208964 - - - -
Totals $17.000,080 § 73847820 § 1354633 57,888,536 % - 3 $ -

As of December 31, 2014 the City’s Pension Trust Funds had the following investments and maturities:
Maturily

Market Less than 1-5 6-10 - More than

Value { Year Years Years 10 Years
Corporate bonds $ 961,453 3% - § 6820535 $. 279400 % -
US government bonds 157,806 - 157,806 - -
Mortgage backed securities 116 - - 116 -
Mutuai funds 7,650,701 7,650,701 - - -
Equity dividend focus 3,526,974 3,526,974 - - -
Money market 256,831 256,831 - - -
$11,434,506 § 839859 § 279516 § -

Totals

$ 12,553,881
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As of December 31, 2014 the City’s Pension Trust Funds had the following credit ratings:
S&P Rating
Market Not
Value Rated AAA AA+ AA~ A Av BRE
Corporate bonds $ 961453 §% - 8 - % 279400 § 256,035 % 250,299 & 175,719 % -
US government
bonds {57, 806 157,806 - - - - - -
Morigapge backed
securitles 116 118 - - - N
Mutual funds 7,650,701 7.650,7G1 - - - - -
Equity dividend focus 3,526,974 3,526,974 - - - - - -
Money market 256,831 256,831 - - ) - -
Totals $12,553.881 $11592312 § I16 8 279400 § 256035 $ 250299 § 175719 % -
Interest Rate Risk

- The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investments as a means of managing its exposure to
fair value losses arising from changing interest rates,

Credit Risk
The City may invest idle funds as authorized in North Dakota Statutes, as follows:

) Bonds, treasury bills and notes, ot other securities that are a direct obligation insured or guaranteed by,
the treasury of the United States, or iis agencies, instrumentalities, or organizations created by an Act of
Congress.

b) Securities sold under agreements to repurchase written by a financial institution in which the underlying

' securities for the agreement to repurchase are the type listed above. '
¢) Certificates of Deposit fully insured by the federal deposit insurance corporation.
d) Obligations of the state. . '

Funds invested by the City at December 31, 2014 wete in investments authorized by the North Dakota Statutes as
identified above,

Concentration of Credit Risk

The City does not have a limit on the amount the City may invest in any one issuer. The City does not have a
formal investment policy that limits investments based on the investment credit ratings.

Custodial Credit Risk

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the government will not be
able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that ere in the possession of an outside party,
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Note4 - Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists of amounts on open account from individuals for goods and services furnished by
the City. An allowance has been established for all uncollectible accounts. As of December 31, 2014 all accounts
are considered collectible.

Note 5 - Taxes Receivable

The taxes receivable represents the past three years of delinquent uncollected taxes. An allowance has been
established for all uncollectible accounts. As of December 31, 2014 all accounts are considered collectible.

The county treasurer acts as an agent to collect property taxes levied in the county for all taxing authoritics, Any
material coflections are distributed after the end of the month.

Property taxes are levied as of Janvary 1, The property taxes altach as an enforceable len on property on January
1. The tax levy may be paid in two installments; the first installment includes one-half of the real estate taxes and
all the special assessments; the second installment is the balance of the real estate taxes. The first instailment is
due by March 1 and the second installment is due by October 15. A 5% discount is allowsed if all taxes and special
assesstents are paid by February 15. After the due dates, the bill becomes delinquent and penalties are assessed.

Most property owners choose to pay property taxes and special assessments in a single payment on or before
: Febmary 15 and receive the 5% discount on the property taxes.

Note 6 - Special Assessments Receivable

Special assessients receivable consists of uncollected speclal assessments due to the City at December 31 and
uncertified special assessments, which represents a long-term recelvable in the government-wide financial
statements. An allowance has been established for all uncollectible accounts. As of December 31, 2014 all
accounts are considered collectible,

Note 7 - Intergovermmental Receivable

Intergovernmental receivables consist of reimbursements due from the State Treasurer for city sales tax,
hospltahty fax, grants and state aid.

Note 8 - Note Receivable

The City provided the Dickinson Municipal Airport Authority a loan for capital improvements at the Airport
Authority. The City agreed to loan up to a maximum of $1,100,000 during the construction phases with no
principal or interest due until the Airport Authority has drawn the full loan amount. Interest accrues at 4% and
principal and interest payments are due in monthly installments for five years. The Airport Authority has drawn
the full $1,100,000 on the note as of December 31, 2014 and the outstanding balance of the note at December 31,
2014 was $844,084. .
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Note9 - Imterfund Receivable/Payable
Intt_:;rfund receivable/payable at December 31, 2014 consists of the following:
Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Community Center Project Fund $ 8,223,657
General Fund Oil & (as Production Fund 854,012
General Fund Annual Street Project Fund 3,682,256
Other Governmental Punds Gther Governmental Funds 9,556
One Percent Sales Tax Fund Wastewater Utility Fund 4,595,676
Solid Waste Utility Fund Wastewater Utility Fund 2,342,284
Other Proprietary Fund Wastewater Utility Fund 142,846
Water Distribution Utility Fund Wastewater Utility Fund 6,169,914
Total $26,020,201
~ The interfund payables will be eliminated when more loan funds are drawn down.
Note 10 -~ Advances to/from Other Funds
* Advances to/from other funds at December 31, 2014 consist of the following:
Advances to other funds Advances from other funds Amount
General Fund Impact Fee Capital Projects 5 3,000,000
Total

$ 3,000,000

The advance to the Impact Fee Capital Projects fund is due in monthly instaillments of $31,820 through January

2023 and has a 5% interest rate,

Note 11 - Inventory

Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/fitst out (FIFO) method. The consumption method is used for
accounting for inventories, Under the consumption method, expenditures are recognized as the goods are used.
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Note 12 - Capital Assets

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2014:

Balance
January 1
(restated - Balance
Note 24) Increases Decreases December 31
Governmental activities -
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 1209832 & - $ - % 1,200,832
Construction in progress 21,972,055 20,423,829 (8,759,532) 33,636,352
‘T'otal capital assets, not
being depreciated 23,181 887 20,423,829 (8,759,332) 34,846,184
. Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings and improvements 24,600,808 23,352,759 - 47,953,567
Improvements other than buildings 63,072,315 2,786,062 - 65,858,377
Machinery and equipment 8,806,150 1,942,060 (69,822) 10,678,388
Total capital assets, being
- depreciated 96,479,273 28,080,881 (69,822) 124,490,332
Less accumulated deprecation for
Buildings and improvements 9,197,373 760,623 - 9,987,996
Improvements other than buildings 34,452,962 2,814,236 - 37,267,198
Machinery and equipment 5,532,765 080,013 63,338) 6,149,440
Total accumulated depreciation 49,183,100 4,284,872 63,338} 53,404,634
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 47,296,173 23,796,009 (6,484) 71,085,698
Governmental activities - capital _
assets, net $ 70478060 § 44219838 $ (8,766,016) § 105,931,882
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as follows:
Governmental Activities
General government : ‘ b 47,274
Public safety ’ 252,159
Public works 3,329,779
Culiure and recreation 645,966
Other 5,694
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities ' ‘ $ 4284872
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Balance Balance
Janyary 1 Inoreases Decreases December 31
Business-type activities )
Capital agsets not being depreciated
* Land 3 720,161 § - % - $ 720,161
Construction in progress 34,122,952 46,915,434 (1,225,849) 79,812,537
Total capital assets, not
) being depreciated 34,843,113 46,915,434 (1,225,84%9) 80,532,698
Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings and improvements 6,767,147 - - 6,767,147
Improvements other than buildings 24,738,967 1,464,069 - 26,203,036
" Machinery and equipment 7,861,945 2,493,693 (435,824) 9,919,814
Total capital assets, being -
depreciated 39,368,059 3,957,762 (435,824) 42,889,997
Less accumulated deprecation for o
Buildings and improvements 5,171,716 140,135 - - 5,311,851
Improvements other than buildings 11,223,097 898,400 - 12,121,497
Machinery and equipment 5,581,259 501,023 (434,181) 5,648,101
Total acoumulated depreciation 21,976,072 1,539,558 (434,181) 23,081,449
Total enterprise capital assets _
being depreciated, net 17,391,987 2,418,204 {1,643) 19,808,548
Business-type activities - capital )
assets, net b 52235100 § 49,333,638 § (1,227.492) § 100,341,246
Business-type activities depreciation expense by fund is as follows: -
Busigess-type Activifies _
Water distribution utility fand : . i $ 613,092
"Wastewater utility fund . . 422,226
Solid waste utility fund , 467,272
. Storm_water utility find ’ . _ 36,968

§ 1,539,558
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Note 13 - Capital Leases

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Accumulated Carrying
Asset Cost Depreciation Value
Sno Go MP-3D 9672 $ 131,131 $ 65,019 $ 66,112
2011 Cat 950H Wheel Ldr 0J5J01625 161,682 61,304 100,378
2011 Elgin Pelican Np21966 03699 162,719 61,698 101,021
Cat Motor Grader 227,847 81,883 145,964
Motor Grader 189,847 68,226 121,621
‘Wheel Load Skidsteer 169,000 47,179 121,821
2014 S175 Aerial Ladder Fire Truck 669,951 47,427 622,524
Total $ L $ 432,736 3 1,279,441
Business-type Activities (Proprietary Funds)
Accumulated Carrying
Asset Cost Depreciation Value
Sewer Relining Project £ 11 15,563 $ 112,486 $ 1,003,077
H911 Traversing Trencher 165,895 76,726 89,169
2012 Bomag Roller Compactor 568,500 108,963 459,537
Landfill Dozer-D6TXWWHA 381,819 35,000 346,819
Peterbilt Side Loader 2015 286227 ‘ 225,158 1,340 223,818
Peterbilt Side Loader 2015 286228 - 245,358 1,460 243,898
Peterbilt Side Loader 2015 286229 : 238,258 1,418 236,840
Caterpillar Twin Engine Scraper 578,910 41,006 337,904
Roll Off Truck SKKMAXDV2EPGA1273 . 168,400 13,332 155,068
Front Load Truck _ 213,887 11,586 202,301
Rear Load Truck : 127,829 12,250 115,579
Total $ 4,029,577 $ 415,567 3 3,614,010
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Futore minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments at December 31,

2014 were as follows:

Year Ending December 31

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

Thereafter

Total minimum lease payments

Less: amount representing interest

Present vatue of minimum lease payments

Note 14 - Long-Term Obligations

Governmental Enterprise

Funds Funds
273,414 667,648
217,695 667,243
176,711 667,243
163,310 667,243
121,707 324,438
127,575 -

1,080,312 2,993,815
(53,128) (154,832)

1,027,284 2,838,983

. During the yeat ended December 31, 2014, the following changes ocburred in long-term liahilities of the City:

. Governmental Activities

Compensated absences
Revenue bonds payable
Bond premium

Capital leases payable
Net pension obligation

Total governmental
debt

Balance Balance Tue Within
January 1 December 31 One Year
$ 669504 $ 699,062 & 697,805 b 285,578
16,905,000 16,948,267 1,085,000
363,040 315,177 26,265
616,887 1,027,284 254,630
494,103 556,260 -
$19,048,534 $ 2,916,670 $19,544,793 $ 1,651,493
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Business-type Activities (Proprietary Funds)
Balance Balance Due Within
January 1 Additions Reductions December 31 One Year
Compensated absences $ 142,455 $ 168,964 $ 152,839 § 158,580 $ 82,263
Notes payable 16,445,492 34,169,831 1,704,785 48,910,538 3,314,000
Capital leases payable 1,123,660 2,179,619 464,296 -2,838,983 610,589

Total enterprise fiind
debt $17,711,607  $36,518,414  $2,321,920  $51,908,101  _§ 4,006,852

Outstanding debt at December 31, 2014 (excluding compensated absences and capital leases) consisted of the
following issues.

Governmental Activities

$16,905,000 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2013; due in
annual installments of $1,379,308 to $3,321,000 through
October 1, 2025; interest at 3% to 5% paid semi-annually. $ 15,855,000

$15,000,000 Water and Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series
2014: $1,093,267 advanced on bonds at December 31,
- 2014 with $13,906,733 available to be drawn; due in annual
installments of $1,894,527 through June 1, 2024; interest at .
2.77% paid semi-annually. 1,093,267

Revenue bonds are issued to finance capital improvement projects in which revenue from operations of such
improvement projects or tevenue pledged from a designated revenne stream is used to pay the debt service. The
City has committed thirty percent of its one percent sales and use tax and seventy-five percent of its one percent
lodging and restaurant tax to pay the annual principal and interest requirements on the 2013 sales tax revenue
bonds. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for the expansion and improvement of the West River
Community Center campus, The bonds are payable through 2025, The total principal and interest remaining to be
paid on the bonds is $20,506,339. Principal payments of $1,050,000 and interest payments of $660,445 were
made in the current year. The sales and use tax revenues in the current year were $8,529,419 and the lodging and
restaurant tax revenues were $1,217,854.

The City has committed one-half of the one and one-half percent sales and use tax revenues raised and collected
io pay the annual principal and interest requirements on the 2014 water and sales tax revenue boads, Proceeds
from the bonds provided financing for City infrastructure projects. The bonds are payable through 2024, The City
can issue up to $15,000,000 in bonds, but only $1,093,267 was advanced at December 31, 2014. Interest
payments of $14,453 were made during the year, No principal was paid in the current year. The sales tax and use
tax revenues in the current year were $4,264,710. '
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Business-type Activities
$835,958 State Revolving Fund Loan; due in annual installments of $39,958
to $44,000 through September 1, 2029; interest at .5% paid semi-annually, $ 408,354
$40,500,000 State Revolving Fund Loan; $30,925,160 drawn on loan at
December 31, 2014 with $9,574,840 available to be drawn; due in annual
installments of $2,000,000 to $2,592,840 through September 1, 2033; interest
at 2% paid semi-anaually, 30,925,160
342,108,000 State Revolving Fund Loan; $17,577,024 drawn on loan at
December 31, 2014 with $24,530,976 availahle to be drawn; due in annnal
installments of $2,269,080 to $2,672,400 thwugh September 1, 2034; interest
at 2% paid semi-annually. 17,577,024

Debt service requirements on long-term debt at December 31, 2014 are as follows:

8 48010538

Revenue Bonds
Governmental Activities Principal Interest
Year Ending December 31 :
2015 ‘ § 1,085,000 $ 850,122
2016 ' 2,208,267 624 848
2017 : 1,150,000 561,115
2018 1,185,000 526,615
2019 . 1,230,000 479,215
2020-2024 ' 6,850,000 1,700,715
2025 3,240,000 162,000

$ 16,948,267

$ 4,904,630
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Notes Payable
- Business-Type Activities Principal Interest
Year Bnding December 31 ' :
2015 $ 3,314,000 $ 948,055
2016 _ 3,396,000 - 889,550
2017 3,476,000 795,546
2018 _ 3,567,000 733,240
2019 3,662,000 669,330
2020-2024 : 17,341,354 2,331,500
2025-2029 14,154,184 669,312

548,910,538 § 7,036,933

Note 15 - Restricted Net Position

- The following details the net position resiricted for special purposes as shown on the statement of net position:

Purpose . Amount

Debt, property tax reductions and infrastructure $ 5,651,438
Urban and economic development A 13,450,109
Job creation and senior citizen activities 1,856,402
Downtown districts 179,384
Oil impacted operations ‘ ' 1,572,482

_§ 22,709,815

Note 16 - Risk Management

- The City of Dickinson is exposed to various risks of loss relating to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets, errors and omissions; injurles to employees; and natural disasters.

In 1986 state agencies and political subdivisions of the statc of Notth Dakota joined togethet to form the North
Dalcota Insurance Reserve Fund (NDIRF), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk
management and insurance program for the state and over 2,000 political subdivisions. The City of Dickinson
pays an annmual premium to NDIRF for its general lability, auto, and inland marine insurance coverage. The
coverage by NDIRF is [imited to losses of one million doliars per occurrence for general habﬂtty and auto
insurance and to $6,300,569 for inland marine insurance,

The City of Dickinson also participates in the North Dakota Fire and Tornado Fund and the State Bonding Fund.
The City of Dickinson pays an annual premium to the Fire and Tornado Fund to cover property damage to
buildings and personal property. Replacement cost coverage is provided by estimating replacement cost in
consultation with the Fire and Tornado Fund. The Fire and Tornado Fund is reinsured by a third party insurance
cartier for losses in excess of one million dollars per occurrence during a 12 month period, The State Bonding
Fund currently provides the City of Dickinson with blanket fidelity bond coverage in the amount of $2,000,000
for its employees. The State Bonding Fund does not currently charge any premium for this coverage,

35




City of Dickinson
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

The City of Dickinson has workets compensation with the Notth Dakota Workforce, Safety and Insurance. The
City provides health insurance plan through Blue Cross/Blue Shield of North Dakota for their employees through
NDPERS. The City pays 80% of the cost of the plan, and the employee pays 20%.

Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three years.

Note 17 - Postemployment Benefits

The City of Dickinson follows Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASR) Statement No, 45,
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The City
of Dickinson engaged an actuary to determine the City’s liability for post-employment benefits other than
pensions. The actuary determined the obligation the City has to record as of December 31, 2014 is the difference
between the Annuat Required Contribution (ARC), defined as the normal cost plus an amortization for prior years
unfunded liability, and the amount paid during the year. The City does not issue a separate financial report for the
postemployment benefits.

Plan Description

Any full-time city employee, who is at least 62 years old or who is at least 55 years old and has completed 25
years of service and retires from city employment is eligible for a benefit consisting of & subsidy of their actual
monthly health insurance cost based on the type of benefit plan, whether a single or family, the retiree carried at
the time of retirement from the date of retirement until the retiree is eligible for federal Medicare. The benefit will
consist of a subsidy of 2% of the retiree’s actual monthly health insurance cost for each full year of employment
with.the city to a maximum of 50% of the retiree’s actual monthly health insurance cost. At no time will the
monthly subsidy exceed the city’s actual group premium cost for a comparable type of policy times the applicable
percentage. If an employee covered by the city’s group plan dies while employed by the city or a retiree covered
by this subsection dies before attaining federal Medicare eligibility, the person(s) covered under the employee’s or
retiree’s health insurance benefit at the time of death or the employee or retiree may continue to receive said
benefit for the remainder of the employee’s/retiree’s benefit allowance period or three years whichever is less.

Membership of the Other Post Retirement Benefit plan consisted of the following at January 1, 2013, the date of
the latest actuarial valuation:

City
Employee Police Total
Retired participants 4 .6 10
Active participants 76 44 120
Total - 80 50 130
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Contributions Required and Made

The funding policy of the plan through December 31, 2014 is a pay-as-you-go plan, coniributing annuatly the
amoynt necessary to pay benefits of retirees. Below are the actuarial methods and assumptions which were used
in the actuaty report and study conducted by Gallagher Benefif Services, Inc.:

Valuation Date

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Remaining Amortization Period

Actuarial Assumptions;
Discount Rate

Janumary 1, 2013
Projected Unit Credit
Level Dollar

30 years

6.5%

For subsequent years, the following health care trend rates have been assumed:

Fiscal Year

2015
2016

- 2017
2018
2019
2020 -+

Trend Rates

0.00%

18.00%

0.00%

17.00%

0.00%

0.00% - 16.00%

Axmual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation — The City’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost
(expensc) is caloulated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45, The ARC represents a level of funding that,
if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actoarial
Habilities (or funding excess) over a period of thirty years.

The fellowing table shows the components of the City*s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually
confributed to the plan, and changes in the City’s net OPEB obligation:

Annual required coniributions
-Interest on OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual required confributions

Annual OPEB costs
- Contributions made

Decrease in net OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligations, beginning of year

Net OPEB obligations, end of year

$ 92,900
9,332

(8,158)

94,074
(192,235)
(98,161)
143,566

$ 45 405
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Funded Status and Funding Progress — As of January 1, 2014, in the most recent actuarial valuation, the plan was
28% funded. The actuarial acerued lability for benefits projected as of January 1, 2014 was $1,057,041 and the
actuarial value of assets was $291,085 resulting in an unfunded actuarial acerued liability (JAAL) of $765,956.

Actvarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future ‘
employment and mortality. Amounts determined regarding the funding status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the emplayer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress is presented as
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing the benefit of costs between the

- ~employer and plan members to that point, The actnatial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatitity in actuarial accrued liabilitics and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

Note 18 - Joint Venture

The City of Dickinson entered into a joint venture for the maintenance of the Southwest Law Enforcement Center
with Stark County and the Southwest Multi-County Correction Center. Each entity appoints two members to the
law enforcement center board. Each participating entity’s share of the cost of operations is determined by the
relative amount of space occupied by each.

The following information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014 is as follows:

Assets $ 143,309

Liabilities 93,686

 Equity $ 9,623

Total revenues $ 514,944

Total expenses : 536,084
Net change in equity 3 {21,140)

Complete financial statements may be obtained from Southwest Multi-County Correction Center, 12th St W and
. 8ims, Dickinson, ND 58601. ‘
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Note 19 - Pension Plans

The City of Dickinson administers three separate defined benefit pension plans — the City Employee Pension Plan,
- the Police Pension Plan and the Volunteer Firemen's Pension Plan. All three plans are considered a part of the
- City of Dickinson’s reporting entify and atre included in the City of Dickinson’s financial reports as Pension Tru:
Funds, .

For the year eaded December 31, 2014, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting jor
Pension Plans, which establishes accounting and financial reporting requirements related to pensions for
governments whose employees are provided with pensions through pension plans. As a result of implementing
this statement the City provided enhanced note disclosures on the defined benefit pension plats. The actuarial
valuations were done for the year ended December 31, 2014 and applied retroactively in order to provide relevant
historical information,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting — All three pension plan financial statements are prepared using the accruat basis of
accounting., Employer and plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are
due. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accofdance with the terms of each plan.
Method Used fo Value Investments — Investments for all three pension plans are recorded at fair value,

Plan Descriptions and Contribution Information

Mesnbership of each plan consisted of the following at Januvary 1, 2015, the date of the latest actuarial valuation:

City Volunteer

Employee Police Firemen
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits ' 30 12 8

Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet

receiving benefits ' 11 6 3
Active pian members ' 28 19 ' 27
Total 69 37 38
Number of participating employers ‘ 2 1 1

Plan Description — The City Employee Pension Plan is a multiple employer defined pension benefit plan, The
Police Pension Plan and the Volunteer Fitemen’s Pension Plans are single employer defined pension benefit plans
which cover substantiatly all full time employees. Each plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits to
plan members and their beneficiaries. All benefit provisions and all requirements are established by city
ordinance, . .
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City ordinance provides that all employees will become participants upon employment. Benefits become filly
vested after 7 years of service. Employees who retire at or after age 62 with 15 years of credited service or after
30 years of credited service are entitled to an aniual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount
equal to 2.3 percent of the final average compensation multiplied by the number of full and remaining fractional
years of service completed by the participant or by a monthly benefit equal to one-twelfth of 3.3 percent of the
total basic compensation for each full year and completed month of service. The amount used is the greater of the
two calculations.

. Contributions — City employee and police plan participants are required to contribute 5% of the employeo’s
monthly salary to the plan. The City is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund the plans
on a sound actuarial basis. Administrative costs are financed through investment earnings. For the volunteer

- firemen’s plan, there are no required contributions as annual investment income is adequate to pay the annual
pension cost. The net pension obligation as of December 31, 2014 for the police pension plan and volunteer
firemen’s plan is $523,739 and $32,521, respectively. '

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded UAAl asa
Valuation Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Date Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Dec 31 (2) (b) {b-a) (a/b) (b} ((b-a)c)
City employee
2012 5,058,444 13,992,181 8,933,737 36% 1,890,812 472%
2013 6,008,097 15,084,110 9,076,013 40% 1,957,159 464%
2014 - 6,668,414 15,484,616 8,816,202 43% 1,705,654 517%
Police
2012 4,314,041 7,548,314 3,234,273 57% 1,256,476 257%
2013 4,942,296 8,442,942 3,500,646 59% 1,443,394 243%
2014 5,352,908 8,805,132 3,452,224 61% 1,280,884 270%
Volunteer firemen ‘
2012 204,373 344,173 139,800 59% : - 0%
2113 254,552 367,572 113,020 69% : - 0%

2014 -284,620 376,696 92,076 - 76% - 0%
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City Voluntcer
- Employee Police Firemen

Valuation date
Actuarial cost method

Amortization method

Remaining amortization period 30 years
Asset valuation method

Actuarial Assumptions

Investment rate of retutn 6.5%
Proiected salary increases 4%
Assumed inflation rate 4%
Post retirement cost of
living adjustment Mone
1994 Group
Mortality Anmity

Jaouary 1, 2015
Level § closed 30 year period

Level § open 30 year period

Smoothing of gains and losses

January 1, 2015
Level § closed 30 year period

Level $ open 30 year period

30 years

Smoothing of gains and losses

6.5%
4%
4%

None
1994 Group
Annuity

Janary 1, 2015

Level § closed 30
year period

Level § open 30
year period

30 yeats

Smoothing of gains
and losses

7.0%
NA
4%

None

1994 Group Annuity

The actuary does not determine the pension contribution rates; rather it is done by employer recommendations
within the limits established by state statue. The employer contributions to the plans are to be made through an
annnal tax levy or other budgeted sources. Based on an actuarial valuation, contributions are providing for a
closed amortization peried of 30 years (29 years remaining as of January 1, 2015) respectwely on the unfunded

liability at January 1, 2015.

Schedule of Contrlbutions
City Employee

Agtitarially deterrvined conteibution
Conbributions in satation to the sctuariaily detennined contribution

Contribution deficiency {excess)
Covered-employes Payroll

Contribuions a3 a pereentape of tovered-employes payroll

Volunteer Firemen

Actuarlaliy determined contribution
Contributidns in relation te the actusrisfly determined contribution

Contribution deficienocy (excess)
Covered-employee Payrolt

Contributions 2s & pereentage of covercd-employee payrall

Police

Actuadally determined contribution
Conicibutians in refation {0 the aciuasially delermined conteibution

Cantribution deficieney (excess)

Covered-employee Payroll

Centribudions 95 a porcentage of sovered-employes payroll

2014 2013 202 3011 2010 2009
$ 854400 % B3321 5 835813 5 833356 0 0§ 874 & 9533
323,620 362.694 851310 9 Sgsr 143412
$ 3670 0§ (193713 § (155660 & 214l 5 316491  § 609,840
1,705,654 1,957,659 1,850,312 1971526 2,091,475 2,271,761
48.29% 44.08% 45.00% 36,00% 26.82% 15.12%
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
§ 26730 %6362 5§ 34367 0§ 30464 S 31988 5 36303
27447 43,367 31919 35,103 12,162 2.242
3 (17) 6300 $ (550 $ (269 8 1952 3 2796
WA NiA NA NA A WA
NiA WA WA /A WA WA
2014 2013 M2 . 2011 2050 2009
$ 430831 5 386961 0§ 76,044 3 2IEEI 0§ 33034 5 47,001
364,786 135382 35,336 341,793 179,088 130,190
€ 66045 2§ (8421) S 24808 03 (2968 § 151946 5 340331
1,280,884 1,443,394 1,256,476 1,181,697 1,214,682 1,387,125
25.48% 14T4Y% 9,39%

2541% 21,96% 28.92%
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The investment policy and asset class allocations are established and may be amended by the Board of Trustees of
the Pension Plan Trust by a majority vote of its members. It is the policy of the plan to pursue an investment
strategy to improve the Plan’s funding status to protect and sustain current and future benefits, minimize the

. employee and employer contributions needed to fund the Plan over the long-term, avoid substantial volatility in
required contribution rates and fluctuations in the Plan’s funding status and to accumulate a fanding surplus to
provide increases in retiree payments to preserve the purchasing power of their retirement benefits,

The Board has parinered with American Trust Center for investment services.

The Board adopted a long-term investment horizon and asset allocation policy for the management of fund assets.
Asset allocation targets are established using an asset-liability analysis designed to determine an acceptable
volatility target for the plan and an optimal asset allocation policy mix. The asset-liability analysis considers both
sides of the plan balance sheet, utilizing both quantitative and qualitative inputs, in order o estimate the potential
impact of various asset class ixes on key measures of total plan risk. The following was the plans asset
allocation as of December 31, 2014 for the following plans:

City Employee Pension Plan

Target
Aasset Class Allocation
Equity 67%
Fixed Income 33%
100%
Volunteer Firemen Pension Plan
Target
Asset Class Allocation
Equity : 66%
Fixed Income 34%
100%
Police Pension Plan
. _ Target
Asset Class . : Allocation
Equity ' 67%
Fixed Income 33%
100%
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Investments are recorded at fair value determined by reference to published market data for publicly traded
securities and using independent valuation service and appraisals for other investments, The net increase in fair
value of investments consists of the realized gains or losses and the unrealized increase or decrease in fair value of
the investments during the year. Realized gains and losses on sales of investments are computed based on the
difference between the sales price and the original cost of the investment. Unrealized increases or decreases are
computed based on changes in the fair value of investments between years. Security transactions are accounted

for on a trade date basis. Interest income is recognized when earned. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-
dividend date.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined by the Plan’s investment
advisor using a building-block method in which best estimate of expected future real rates of retum (expected
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and market comparison) are developed far each major asset class,
These asset class estimates are combined to produce the portfolio Iong term expected rate of return by weighting
the expected future real rates of return by the current asset allocation percentage (or target allocation, if available).
The best estimates of expected future real rates of return were developed by American Trust Center in their annual
meeting with the City of Dickinson Board of Trustees. The real rate of return is summarized in the following
tables for each plan: :

City Employee Pension Plan

Long-Term
Expected -
Rezl Rate
Asset Class of Return
Bquity 8%
Fixed Income ‘ ‘ © 5%
Volunteer Firemen Pension Plan
Long-Term
Expected
Real Rate
Asset Class : : ' of Return
Equity ) 8%
Fixed Income . . 5%
Police Pension Plan
Long-Term
EBxpected
Real Rate
Asset Class . of Return
Equity 8%
Fixed Income ] ) : 5%
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In compliance with GASB No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, presented below are the Schedule of
Net Pension Liability, Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability, Schedule of Plan Fiduciary Net Position,
Schedule of Investment Returns and Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to changes in the Discount Rate,

City Employee Pension Plan

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Lisbflity
Service Cost
Tnterest
Changes of benefil terms
Differences befween expected and actunl experience
Changes of assunptions
Benefit payments, inotuding refunds of member contributions
Net change in total pension linbisity
Talal Pension Liabitity--Beginning

“Tosl Pension Liability—Hnding (a}

Schedule of Net Pension Linbility

Total Pension Lisbility
Plan fiduciary net position

Mot pension liability (asset)

Plan fiduciary nol position as a perceniage of the total peasion lishility
Coveted-smplayes Fyroll

et pension tisbility (asset) as 2 percentage of sovored-smployes payrall

Schedule of Investent Returas

Annuzl mongy-weighted 1ate of retum, net of investment expenses

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
5 29558 0§ 248760 § 286488 & 92566 05 31,109 § 398,080
972,609 900,393 $50,030 797 587 435,051 §79,059
- . . - {299,052) .
(93,627 632,141 218,204 200,735 385,910 (110,843)
- - - . (17,350 2,132,758
(758,124 {601,257} {483,101} (482,723) ¢3,115,022) (1,056,858)
400,506 1,150,637 &71,621 838,465 11,895,357 2,242,253
15,084,110 13,904,073 13,032,452 12,193,987 14,093,344 11,851,121
$ 15484,616  § 15084110  § 13904073 . $13,032452 5 12103987 5 140093344
2014 2013 2012 2011 050 2009
5 15484616 § 15084130  § 13504073 $13,032452 S I2,193587  $ 14,003344
6,844,549 6,350,031 5.274,620 4404247 4,025,123 6,017,971
S B6INGET  § 8734079 $ 8620453 § 5628287 % BI636t  § 8075373
44,20% 42.10% 37.94% 33.79% 33.01% 42,700
1,705,654 1,957,859 1,890,812 1,077,526 2,091,475 2,271,761
S06.53% 426.26% 456.39% 49631% 390,58% 354
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
5.2% 13.9% 9.7% 0.2% 10,5% 23,8%

The following presents the net pension [iability of the City Empldyee pension plan calculated discount rate of 6.5
- percent, as well as what the City Employee’s net pension liability would be if it were caleulated using a discount
rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate:

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability te Changes in the Discount Rate

Total Penston Liability
Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Net Pension Liability

Current 1%

1% Decrease  Discount Rate Increase
(5.5%) {6.5%) (7.5%)
$16,755,367 315,484,616 $14,378,255

6,844,949 6,844,949 6,844,949

3 9,910,418

$ 8,639,667

§ 7,533,306
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Volunteer Firemen Pension Plan
Anruat Peasion Cost Componendy 2014 2013 2012, 01 20e 2069 2008
Anmal Reguired Contribution (ARC) 5 26,710 26,562 ) 31,367 3 30,464 § 31,984 s 36,303 § 8,342
Interest un Net Pension Qlligation (asset) 2,349 2,841 2,898 3,000 1,743 (228) -
Adjustment to Annun] Required Contribution® (2,682} (3,126} {3,151) (3.334) (2,197) 418 -
Annval Benston Cost 26,463 20,277 FIRIL) 36,229 31,530 36,493 2342
Contributions Mads 21,447 33,362 31,959 33,103 12,162 8342 11,592
. Incrersa {decrease) in Met Pension Obligdifon (asser) (9R4) {7,085} {8053 (2,874) 19,368 28,151 {3,250)
Net Fenston Obligation (assel) beginning of year 33,505 40,590 41,395 A4IGY 2490 (3,250 .
Net Penston Obligation (pssel) end of year 3 32,521 33,308 3 40,590 8 41,395 1 44,269 $ 24,501 3 (3,250)
* Beginntng of Year Net Pension Obligaion amortized over:
2008 and 2009; average working lifelime of the ackive partisipanig
2018; 20 yzar ¢losed pefod, leve! detlar, bepinning Fanuacy 1, 2019
2011; 30 year closed perod, levet dollar, begihning Januscy 1, 2011
Schedule of Net Position Liabitity 2014 2013 2012 2011 2038 2009
‘Total Pension Linbility 3 376,695 £ 367,572 3 344,1‘]3 § a70040 §  3734%% $ 379861
Plan fiduciary net position 288,275 263,976 200,857 214,136 223,321 215,652
Net pension liabiliey (asset) 5 58,471 3 193,396 § 134306 3 155504 S 150,108 g 164209
Plan fiduciary nel position as a percentage of the 1ote] pension bahility 16.51% 71.82% 60.98% 518 $9.79% 56.77%
Covored-cmployes Payrall NFA TMNA WA WA NA WA
Net penston [abilicy (asset) es a percentage of covered-employee payrolt MA NA NiA WA NA WA
Sehedule of Changes in Net Feaston Liahility 2014 2013 2082 2011 210 2089
Service Cost 5 14,918 § 13,797 $ 16,218 3 16,274 ] 16,237 b3 15,263
Interost 26,248 24,839 235,130 26,010 26,750 25,057
Differences betwoen expected and actual exparience (17,014) {8,990} (12,587) {9,353) (21,449) 14,237
Changes of assumptions “ - - - - {10,044}
Benefit payments, inclading refunds of ber contributf {15,028) (6,247) (54,528) (36,380) {27,91Q) (6,697}
Net change It 1otal peasion fiabiliey 5124 73,399 (25.867) (3,449} 6372 33,816
. Tozl Pension Liability--Beginning 367,572 344,173 370,040 373,482 379,861 346,045
Total Pension Liability--Ending (2) § 376 696 § 157,572 5344373 $ 3040 § 171 § 379.86)
Plzn Fiduclary Net Position
Contribulicns--employer § 27,447 & 33,362 & 31,919 5 33,103 $ 12,162 3 §,342
Net investment inpomg 14,756 29,066 20,037 {2,652) 25974 46,907
Benefit payments, incluiding refunds of member cantebutinns {15,028) (6,247) {54,528) (36,180) (27,910) {6,657
* Administeative expense {2.926) {2,072) £1,697) {3,256) {2,557} {4,855)
Net change in plan fiducincy net position 24,24% 54,109 4,269 {9,185) 7.669 41,657
Plan fiduciary net positign--beginming 263,976 209,867 214,136 223,321 215,652 171,593
Plan fiduchary net pasition—eading (5) § 785225 § 263976 § 209367 $ 24036 § 223321 $ 215652
Het Pension Liability (asset)--eading (a) - (b) § 88471 S K359 5 134306 $ 155504 § 150,168 5 164,209
Schedude of Investment Returns 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2409
Annual money-weighted rete of relurn, net af investment expenses 5.5% 13.1% 10.2% -14% 12.6% 27,5%
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The following presents the net pension liability of the Volunteer Firemen pension plan caleulated discount tate of
7 percent, as well as what the Volunteer Firemen’s net pension lability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the cutrent rate:

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liabilify to Changes in the Discount Rate

- Total Peusion Liability
Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Net Pension Liability

Police Pension Plan

Annunt Pension Cost Components

Annun? Requlsed Contribation (ARC)

Taterest on Nel Pension Obligalon {asset)
Adjustaient to Anoual Reqelted Canlribstion®
Annuat Pension Cost

Coutributions Made )

Inerease {decrease) in Net Pension Gbligation (ussef}
Net Pension Oblipatlot (assef} bepinniag of year

et Pension Obligntion (assef) end of year

* Beginning of Yoy Nel Pension Obligation amorlized ovor;
7008 and 2009: averga working Rfetims of the active paciielpanis
2010: 20 year closed peiod, lovel dollar, beginning Tnuacy 1, 2610
2011 30 year closed poriod, loval dollar, beginning January.1, 2013

. Schedule of Net Position Liability

Total Pension Lisbility
Plan fiduciary aet pogition

Net pension linbility (nsset)

Plan fiduciary net §

Atap ge of the taial ¢

Covered-employee Payroll

Net pension liability (asset) a3 8 percentage of covered-employee payroll

Current 1%
1% Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(6.0%) {7.0%) (3.0%)
§ 411,905 $ 376,696 $ 346,547
288,225 288,225 288,225
$ 123,680 $ 88,471 $ 58,322
2014 2013 2012 Z011 2010 2009 2008
5 430,831 3 385,961 $ 376,144 5 3358% 35 331,034 $ #1021 3 130,136
34,545 37,625 35,931 36,290 25,305 (264) .
(37449} {40,326) (35,103) (38 111) (30,787) 355 .
327,957 384980 373972 337,010 335,552 FLIE 130,185
364,786 425,332 351,336 341,793 179,088 130,196 133,700
33,141 {41,118) 22616 4,780 146,464 349,922 (3,523)
460,596 501,736 475,080 482,863 337,309 3,523) .
$ 523739 § 460,308 5 505,716 ¥ 479,080 $  4R3,863 $ 337399 L (3,523)
1
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
§ 8794960  § 8432714 § 7539304 § 6947570 3 632140 5 6981560
5,520,718 5,239,311 4474258 3,960,053 3,867,676 4.384,658
$ 3274242 $5,193,40) 5 3,065,046 $ 2,966,617 § 2514464 $ 2,598,602
Tiahility 62.77% 62.13% 55,35% 5730% 60.60% £2.79%
1,280,834 §.443,394 1,256,476 1,181,697 1,204,682 1,387,125
255.62% - 221.24% 241,94% 251.05% 207.01% 187,34%
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Sehedule of Chianges in Net Pension Liability 2014 2013 201% 2411 2010 2008
Service Cost § 210,680 3 184,533 § 203,606 5 199425 3 193,348 $ 247,966
Tnterest 548,605 490,889 455,694 418,313 425,560 482006
Changes of benefit terms - - - - {146,022) -
Differences between expected and actual experience 9,528 561,396 213,512 239,651 55,802 147,428
Changas of assumptions - - - - (3,525) 197,645
Benefil payments, including refunds of member contributions {406,497} {343,408 (281,168) (251,959) {1,136,573) (540,517
‘Nel changs in lotal pension Liabitity 162,246 893,410 591,734 265,430 (601,425) 534,528
Total Pension Linbility--Beginning 5432714 7,519,904 §,547,570 6,382,140 6,983,560 6,449,035
Total Penesion Liability--Ending (a) b B.794.060 $ 3432714 $ 7,532304 $ 6,047,370 5 6382140 3 6,983,560
Plan Fiduelary Nel Tasition
Contributions—~employer § 364,786 § 425382 £ 3138 & 341,793 $  179,08% £  130,k90
Contributicns—membier 71,151 71,008 67,696 46,838 66,582 78,77¢
Wt invesiment incoms 284,155 642,113 382,496 22,290 401,676 905,944
Benefit payments, including refunds of member conliibutlons (A06,497) (343,408) (281,168} (291,959) {1,136,573) (340,517)
Administrative expense (32,288) {30,042 (26,265} (25,685} (28,055} (23,912
Net chenge in plan fiduciary net position 281 407 765,053 493,305 163,277 (517,282) 350,476
Plax fiduclary net position--bepinning 5,239,311 4,474,258 3,980,953 3,867,676 4,384,958 3,834 48
Pian fiduciazy net position--ending (b) $ 5520,718 § 5239311 $ 4,474,258 S _3.980.553 $ 3.867.676 5 4,384,958
Net Pension Linbility (asset)-onding (a} - (b) $ 332z § 3,193,403 $ 3,065,046 $ 2966617  $ 2,514,464 £ 2,508,502
Scheduls of Invesiment Returns 204 2013 2012 2011 2088 2609

Atmuat monsy-waighted rate of relurn, aet of invesiment expenses 54% 14.2% 9.8% 0.5% 19.5% #.1%

The following presents the net pension liability of the Police pension plan calculated discount rate of 6.5 percent,
as weill as what the Police’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1
percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate:

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Current 1%
1% Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(5.5%) (6.5%) (7.5%)
Tota] Pension Liability ) $ 9,690,537 3 8,794,960 § 8,045,250
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 5,520,718 5,520,718 5,520,718
Net Pension Liability $ 4169819  § 3274242 $ 2,524,532
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Note 20 - Closure and Postclosure Care Costs

State and federal laws and regulations require that the City of Dickinson place a final cover on its landfill when
closed and perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site, In addition to operating
expenses related to current activities of the landfill, an expense provision and related liability are being recognized
- based on the future closure and postelosure care costs that wilt be incurred near or after the date the landfill no
longer accepts waste. The recognition of these landfill closure and postelosure care costs is based on the amount
of the landfill used during the vear. The estimate liability for landfill closure and postclosure care costs has a
balance of $556,428 at December 31, 2014, which is based on 22% usage (filled) of the landfill. It is estimated
that an additional $2,189,287 will be recognized as closure and postclosure care sxpenses between the date of the
balance sheet and the date the landfill is expected to be filled to capacity. The estimated total current cost of the
landfiil closure and postclosure care of $2,745,715 is based on the amount that would be paid if all equipment,
facifities, and services required to close, monitor, and maintain the landfill were acquired as of December 31,
2014. However, the actual cost of closure and postelosure care may be higher due to inflation, changes to
technology, or changes in landfill laws and regulations.

Note 21 - Transfers

The following is a reconciliation between transfets in and transfers out as reported in the basic financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2014:

Fund Transfer In Transfer Out
General Fund ' $ 2495612 $ 323,524
" One Percent Sales Tax - 9,136,000
(il & Gas Production Fund ’ - 25,418,000
Building Construction 27,737,125 -
Amual Streef Project Fund 2,350,000 -
2013 Sales Tax Revenue Bond Fund 7,572,000 -
Ofther Governmental Funds 100,977 5,634,078
Water Distribution Utility - 7,235
‘Wastowater Utility - 9168
Solid Waste Utility - 151,880
Other Proprietary Fund ' - 841
Internal Service Fund 425,012 -
Total transfers ‘ $ 40,680,726 $ 40,680,726

The transfers in and out during 2014 were budgeted transfers,

Note 22 - Commitments

The City of Dickinson had outstanding commitments for construction contracts totaling $129,091,453 on
December 31, 2014, of which $114,007,979 has been paid. Subsequent to year end, the City entered into
additional construction contracts totaling $63,034,033.
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Note 23 - Subsequent Events

Subsequent to year end the City approved the {ssuance of sales tax revenue bonds up to $10,000,000 to finance
wastewater utilify system improvements.

~ The City has evaluated subsequent events through July 15, 2015, the date which the financial statements were
available to be issued.

Nete 24 - Correction of Error
Ptior to January 1, 2014, the City had not been recording retainage payable in their financial statements in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The adjustment to the beginning balance of the fund
balanee is as follows: ’

Building
General Construction
Fund balance - Janyary 1, as _
previously reported 5 16,238,404 § (1,619,497)
Restatement to add prior year
retainage payable ) (78,345) (849,583)
Fund balance - Januarty 1, as restated : $ . 16,160,059 $ (2,469.080)

The effect on beginning balance of capital assets after the restatement of retainage payable is as follows:

Balance
Construction in progress - January 1,
as previously reported $§ 21,044,127
Restatement to add prior yoar
refainage payable o 927,928
Construction in progress - January 1,
as restated ) . . $ 21,972,055
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The beginning net position of the governmental activities has been restated to include the net pension obligation
related to the Volunteer Firemen and Police Pension Plan’s, In reviewing the guidance for the newly implemented
and upcoming pension statements, it was determined that both plans are to be recorded as a net pension obligation
on the City of Dickinson financial statements. The liability for these plans has been added to the government-wide
stalements. The effoet of the restatement is as follows:

Government-
Wide
Net position - Januaty 1, as
previously reported $ 100,551,959
Restatement to add prior year
net pension obligation _ (494,103)
Net position - January 1, as restated $ 100,057,856
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City of Dickinson
Budgetary Comparison Schedule — General Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Revenucs

Taxes
Licenses, permits and fees
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Imterest and investment income
MisceHaneous revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures

Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Other
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
© over expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of assets
Transfers in
Fransfers out

Total Other Financing Sources and
Uses

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - January 1, as
previously reported

Restatement (Note 24)

Fund Balance - January, as restated

Fund Balance - December 31

Actual Variance
Original Final (Budgetary With Final
Budget Budget Basis) Budget
$ 3,893,125 $ 4,092,125 $ 4,233,261 $ 141,136
1,351,718 1,801,718 1,705,050 {96,668)
2,769,872 2,769,872 3,864,291 1,094,419
1,972,805 1,972,805 2,055913 83,108
355,000 445,000 478,280 33,280
40,500 40,500 145,757 105,257
11,800 245,322 112,223 (133,097
10,394,820 11,367,342 12,594,777 1,227,435
3,545,657 3,573,657 5,161,697 (1,588,040)
5,820,590 5,860,590 5,865,066 (4,476}
3,545,664 4,046,664 2,419,485 1,627,179
443,160 500,191 354,543 145,648
170,000 170,000 122,992 47,008
- - 521,990 {521,990)
13,525,071 14,151,102 14,445,773 (294,671)
(3,130,251) {2,783,760) (1,850,994) 932,764
- - 182,369 182,369
2,911,044 2,911,044 2,831,839 {79,205)
{1,246,431) (1,246,431) {527,697) 718,734
1,664,613 1,664,613 2,486,511 821,898
{1,465,638) (1,119,147 635,515 1,754,662
7,846,301 7,846.301 7,846,301 ~
- - (78,345) {78,345)
7,846,301 7,846,301 7,767,956 (78,345)
$ 6,380,663 3 6,727,154 ¥ 8,403,471 $ 1,676,317
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City of Dickinson
Budgetary Comparison Schedule — General Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Differences between budgetary and GAAP fund balance

General fund % 8,403,471
Asset forfeiture Co " 16,443
Cemetery . 295,320
Historic preservation _ 412
Fuoture fund - 8,370,911
Urban foresfry ' - 91,610

GAAP fond balance (combined with General fund
for GAAP presentation) § 17,173,167,
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City of Dickinson
Budgetary Comparison Schedule — One Percent Sales Tax Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Revenues

Taxes

Imterest and investment income
Total revenue

Expenditures
Current
Urban and economic
development
Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revemies
over Expenditures

Other Financing Uses
Transfers out

Net change in fund balances
Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - December 31

One Percent Sales Tax

. Variance
Original Final With Final
Budget Budget Actnal Budget
3 7,350,000 § 7,350,000 $ 8,529,419 $ 1,179,419
35,000 85,000 120,152 35,152
7,435,000 7,435,000 8,649,571 1,214,571
10,016,000 10,016,000 1,387,827 8,628,173
10,016,000 10,016,000 1,387,827 8,628,173
(2,581,600) (2,581,000} 7,261,744 9,842 744
{350,000) (350,000} {9,136,000) {8,786.000)
(2,931,000% (2,931,000) {1,874,256) 1,056,744
11,156,263 11,156,263 11,156,263 -
b 8,225,263 $ 8,225,263 3 9,282,007 3 1,056,744
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City of Dickinson

Budgetary Comparison Schedule — Oil & Gas Fund
Year BEnded December 31, 2014

Oil & Gas Fund
Variance

Original Final With Final

Budget Budgst Actugl Budget
Revenues
Intergovernmental revenues $ 21,600,000 $ 21,600,000 $ 18,456,751 $ (3,143,249

Total revenue 21,600,000 21,600,000 18,456,751 (3,143,249

Other Financing Uses :
Transfers out (25,418,000) (25,418,000) {25,418.000) -
Net change in fund balances (3,818,000) {3,818,000) (6,961,249) (3,143,249)
Fund Balance - January 1 8,533,731 8,533,731 8,533,731 -
Fund Balance - December 31 3 4,715,731 g 4,715,731 $ 1,572,482 3 (3,143,249
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City of Dickinson

Other Postemployment Benefit Schedules

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Actoarial
Actuarial Valuation Value Accrued Unfunded Funded
Date Januvary 1, of Assets Liability (AAL) AAL (UALL) Ratio
2012 $ 47,387 $ 1,223,999 $ 1,176,612 3.9%
2013 184,108 1,022,383 838,275 18.0%
2014 ’ 291,085 1,057,041 765,956 27.5%_1
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Annual

Year Ended OPEB City Percentage
December 31 Costs Contributions Contributed
2012 $ 129,494 $ 127,827 98.7%
2013 97,756 175,625 179.7%
2014 94,074 204.3%

192,235

55



City of Dickinson
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information
“Year Ended December 31, 2014

Notel- Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

Budgetary Information

The governing board adopts an annual budget on a basis consistent with GAAP for the general fund, each special

revenue fund and each debt service fund of the municipality, The city is required to present the adopted and final

amended revenues and expenditures for each of these funds.

The following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

. ® Onorbefore September 10th of the preceding fiscal year, the city prepares a preliminary budget for the

-next succeeding year beginning January 1st. The preliminary budget includes & detailed breakdown of the
estimated revenues and appropriations,

 ‘The governing board holds a public hearing where any taxpayer may testify in favor or against any
proposed disbursements or tax levies requested in the preliminary budget. After the budget hearing and on
or before October 1st, the board adopts the final budget.

The final budget must be filed with the county auditor by Qctober 10th, -

+ No disbursement shall be made or liability incurred in excess of the total appropriation bj,r furid. However,
the governing board may amend the budget during the year for any revenue and appropriations not
anticipated at the time the budget was prepared. The budget amendments must be approved by the board
and the approval must be noted in the proceedings of the board.

* All annual appropriations lapse at year-end.

Note2 - Actuarial Assumptions and Methods

Unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities (UAAL) were amortized by level dollar contributions. The UAAL was
determined using the funding value of assets, which equal $291,085, and the actuarial accrued liability calculated
as of the valuation date. The UAAL amortization payment is the level dollar amount required to amortize the
UAAL over a closed 30 year period.

Significant actuarial assumptions employed by the acluaries fm fundmg purposes as of January 1, 2014, the date
of the latest actuarial study are as follows:

Discount rate ' 6.50% per year
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City of Dickinson
Notes to the Recuired Supplementary Information
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Moenthly premiums as of
January 1, 2013

Health care trend rates

Expected monthly retires
medical costs

- Participation rate '

Retirement Age

The benefits payable to retirees are a percentage of actual health
premiums, but are limited to no mote than the same percentage of the
premiums paid by active employees, For purposes of this valuation, the
projected active employee premium was used as the basis for projecting
tetiree health benefits.

The active employee premiums as of January 1, 2013 are as follows:

Coverage
Single $456.16
Family 1,102.08

The following health care trend rates have been assumed:

Fiscal Year ’ Trend Rates

2015 0.00%

2016 18.00%

2017 0.00%

2018 17.00%

2019 0.00%

2020+ 0.00%- 16.00%

Because retirees are not included in the City's health insurance plan, and
do not affect the premiums paid by the City, the actuary did not use age
specific costs in the valuation of liabilities under the plan.

160% of employees with medical coverage are assumed to elect medical
coverage in the plan at retirement, if eligible.

80% of employees with family coverage are assumed to be married and
clect coverage for their spouse at retirement, if eligible.

City employees: 100% retire at age 62 or 30 years of service; Police
employees: 100% retire af age 55 or 30 years of service,
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‘ City of Dickinson
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Mortality

Withdrawal

Disability
Actuarial Methods
Actuarial method
Calculatior date

Amortization of unfunded actuarial
accrued liability

1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table

Table T-4 - rates varying by age. Sample withdrawal rates are as follows:

Age | Rate
25 5.29%
30 5.06%
35 4.710%
40 4,19%
45 3.54%
50 2.48%

None
Projected Unit Credit with 30-year amortization of the unfunded liability,

Janvary 1, 2013

Amortized as a level dollar amount over 30 years
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City of Dickinson

Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Governmental Funds

December 31, 2014

Assets

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable

Taxes receivable

Special assessments receivable
Intergovernmental receivables
Interfund regeivable

Restricted cash and investtents

Total assets
Liabilities and Pund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Interfund payables
Advances from other funds
Uneatned revenue

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred property taxes
Deferred special assessment
taxes
Total deferred inflows of
tesources

Fund Balances

- Restricted
Commnitted
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources,
and fund balances

Total

Special Debt Capital Nonmajor

Revenue Service Projects Governmental
Funds Fund Funds Funds

$ 1,893,708 $ 442,999 b 338,691 ¥ 2,675,398
5,918 - - 5,918
1,476 - - 1,476
11,235 - 1,233,299 1,244,534
656,746 - - 656,746
9,556 - - 9,556
- 642,786 - 642,786
$ 2,578,639 $ 1,085,785 $ 1,571,990 § 5236414
$ 14,199 $ - $ - & 14,199
8,150 - - 8,150
9,556 - - 9,556
- - 3,000,000 3,000,000
6,200 - - 6,200
38,105 - 3,000,000 3,038,105
1,476 - - 1,476
11,235 - 1,233,299 1,244,534
12,711 - 1,233,259 1,246,010
1,189,819 950,764 - 2,140,583
1,150,058 - - 1,150,058
187,946 135,021 16,550 339,517
- - (2,677,859} (2,671,859)
2,527,823 1,085,785 (2,601,309) 952,299
B 2,578,639 $ 1,085,785 $ 1,571,990 $ 5,236,414
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© Assets

Cash and investmentis
Accounts receivable

Taxes receivable .
Special assessments receivable
Intergovernmental receivables
Interfund receivable

Total assets
Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities -
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Interfund payable
Unearned revenue
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred property taxes
Deferred special assessment taxes
Total deferred inflows of resources

Fund Balances
Restricted
Committed
Assigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

Downtown Wastewater

Tmprovement Half Percent Hospitality Backup
District Sales Tax Tax Reserve

$ 179,384 § 611,063 $ 454057 % 11,207

- - - 5,918

11,235 - - -

- 399,370 127,633 -

g 190,619 $ 1,010,435 $  581.6%0 $ 17,125

b ~ 8 - 5 - 3 -

11,235 - - -

11,235 - - -

179,384 1,010,435 - “

- - 581,690 17,125

179,384 1,010,435 581,690 17,125

3 190,619 ¥ 1,010,435 $ 581,690 $ 17,125




City of Dickinson

Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Pecember 31, 2014

Total
Nonmajor
Dickinson Special
Grant Public Occupancy Revenue
Fund Library Tax Fund
- $ 181,695 $ 456,300 $ 1,893,708
- - - 5,918
- 1,476 - 1,476
- - - 11,235
26,477 17,879 85,387 656,746
- - 9,556 9,556
26,477 3 201,050 3 551,243 § 2578639
10,721 b 3478 % - 3 14,199
- 8,150 - 8,150
9,556 - - 9,556
6,200 - - 6,200
26477 11,628 - 38,105
- 1,476 - 1,476
- - - 11,235
- 1476 - 12711
- - - 1,189,819
- - 551,243 1,150,058
- 187,946 - 187,946
- 187,946 351,243 2,527,823
26477 § 201,050 _§ 351,243 § 2,578,639
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City of Dickinson
Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Debt Service Funds

December 31, 2014
2014 Total
Water & Sales General Nonmajor
Tax Revenue Capital Governmental
Bonds Leases Funds
Assets
Cash and investments 5 307,978 135,021 $ 442,999
Restricted cash and investments 642,786 - 642,786
Total assets $ 950,764 135,021 $ 1,085,785
Fund Balances .
" Restricted 3 950,764 - 5 950,764
Assigned - 135,021 135,021
Total fund balances $ 950,764 135,021 $ 1,085,785
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City of Dickinson

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

December 31, 2014
Total
Praitle Nonmajor
Impact Fees Elks Outpost Capital
Capital Building Pavilion Projects
Projects Project Project Funds
Assets
Cash and investments $ 322,141 3 10,529 6,021 b 338,691
Special assessments
-receivable 1,233,299 “ - 1,233,299
Total assets $ 1,555,440 3 10,529 6,021 $ 1,571,990
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities .
Advances from other funds $ 3,000,000 $ - - $ 3,000,000 .
Total liabilities 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred special assessment
Taxes 1,233,299 - - 1,233,299
Total deferred inflows of
resources ' 1,233,299 - - 1,233,299
Fund Balances
Assigned - 10,529 6,021 16,550
Unassigned (2,677,859 - - {2,677,859)
Total fund balances (2,677,839 10,529 6,021 {2,661,309)
Total liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources,
and fund balances $ 1,555,440 6,021 $ 1,571,990

$ 10,529
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City of Dickinson

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances ~ Nonmajor Governmental

Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Revenues
Taxes
Infergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Special assessments
Interest and investment income
Miscellaneous revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Public safety
Public works
Cutture and recreation
Utban and economic
development
Capital outlay
Debt Service -
' Principal
Interest and service charges
Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Bonds issued

Capital lease additions
‘Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources
and uses

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - December 31

Total
Special Debt Capitat Nonmajor
Revermue Service Projects Governmental
Funds Fund Funds Funds
$ 675,556 § -8 - § 6751,556
830,932 - - 830,932
104,076 - - 104,676
11,004 - - 11,004
18,988 - 1,973,810 1,992,798
43,332 - 189 43,521
157,583 - - 157,583
T.917.471 - 1,973,999 9,891,470
198,531 - - - 198,531
44,861 - - 44,861
1,114,191 - - 1,114,191
11,650 . - 11,650
556,044 669,951 480 1,226,475
- 259,554 - 259,554
- 165,769 - 165,769
1,925,277 1,095,274 480 3,021,031
5,992,194 (1,095,274) 1,973,519 6,870,439
- 1,093,267 - 1,093,267
- 669,951 - 669,951
o977 100,000 - 100,977
(5,634,078) - - (5,634,078)
{5.633,100) 1,863,218 - {3,769,883)
359,093 767,944 1,973,519 3,100,556
2,168,730 317,841 {4,634,828) (2,148,257)
3  2,527.823 3 1,085,785 $ (2,661,309) $ 952,299
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Revenues
Taxes
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Special agsessments
Interest and investment income
Miscellaneous revenues
Total rgvenues

Expenditures

Current
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation _
Urban and economic development
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Transfets ont
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - Decemﬁer 31

Downtown Wastewater

Improvement Half Percent Hogpitality Backup
Disirict Sales Tax Tax Reserve

$ - % 4264710 § 1,217,854 - § -

18,988 - - -

1,987 31,314 6,694 236

- - - 55,202

20.975 4,296,024 1,224,548 55438

- - . 44,861

- 11,650 - -

- 11,650 - 44,861

20,975 4,284,374 1,224,548 10,577

977 - - -

(2,500% {4,610,250) (878,058) -

{1,523) {4,610,250) (878,058) ~

19,452 {325.876) 346,490 10,577

159,932 1,336,311 235,200 6,518

3 179,384 1,010,435 3 581,690 % 17,125




City of Dickinson

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Nonmajor Special Revenue
Funds

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Total
Nonmajor
Dickinson Special
Grant Public Ogccupancy Revenue
Fund Library Tax . Funds

- $ 451,381 3 777,611 $ 6,751,556

509,987 320,045 . 830,932
- 104,076 . 104,076

- 11,004 . 11,004

; . - 18,988

; 3,101 - 43,332
34.458 67,923 - 157,583
544,445 998,430 777,611 7,917,471
198,531 - § 198,531
. . . 44,861

- 716,110 398,081 1,114,191

- ; - 11,650
337,685 218,359 - 556,044
536,216 034,469 308,081 1,925,277
8,229 63,961 379,530 5,992,194

. - ; 977
(8,229) (4,179) (130.862) (5,634,078)
(8,229) (4,179) (130,862) (5,633,101)

- 59782 248,668 359,093

: 128,164 302,575 2,168,730

- 3 187,946 & 551243 § 2527823
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City of Dickinson
Comblmng Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
Vear Ended December 31, 2014

Expenditures
Capitai ouilay
Debt Service
Pringipal
Interest and service charges
Total expenditures

Deficiency of Revenues
over expenditures

Qther Financing Sources
Bounds issued
Capital lease additions

Transfers in
Total Other Financing Sources
" Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance « Januvary 1

Fund Balance - December 31

2014 Total
Water & Sales CGeneral Nonmajor
Tax Revenue Capital Governmental

Bonds Leases Funds
$ - $ 669,951 $ 669,951
- 259,554 259,554
142,503 23,266 165,769
142,503 952,771 1,095,274

(142,503) (952,771) {1,095,274)

1,093,267 - 1,093,267
- 669,951 669,951
- 100,000 100,000
1,093,267 769,951 1,863,218
950,764 (182,820) 767,944
- 317,841 317,841
3 950,764 3 135,021 $ 1,085,785
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City of Dickinson

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Nonmajor Capital Projects

Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Revenues
Special assessments
Interest and Investment income
Total revenues

Expenditures
Capital outlay
Total expendityres

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance - January 1

- Fund Balance - December 31

Total
Prairie Nenmajor
Impact Fee Eiks Outpost Capital
Capital Building Pavilion Projects
Projects Project Project Funds
3 1,973,810 3 - $ - 3 1,973,810
- 120 69 189
1,973,810 120 69 1,973,999
480 - - 480
480 - - 480
1,973,330 120 69 1,973,519
1,973,330 120 69 1,973,519
(4,651,189} 10,409 5,952 (4,634,828)
b (2,677,859) $ 10,520 § 6,021 $ {2,661,309)
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City of Dickinson
Combining Balance Sheet — Agency Funds

December 31, 2014
Emergency
General Shelter Payroll
Transit Grant Clearing Totals
Assets
Cash and investments b 1,820 $ 7,684 $ 2,297,097 $ 2,306,601
. Accounts receivable 85,078 - - 85,078
Total assets b 86,898 $ 7,684 $ 2,297,097 $ 2,391,679
Iiabilities
Due to other parties $ 86898 & 7684 $ 2297,097 5 2391679
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Independent Aaditor’s Report on Internal Control over Finaneial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Anditing Standards

City Commissioners
‘City of Dickinson
Dickinson, North Dakota,

‘We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

"America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type aciivitics, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
City of Dickinson as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise City of Dickinson’s basic financial statements, and have issued
owr report thereon dated July 15, 2015,

Internai Control over Financial Reportmg
In platning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Clty of Dickinson's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Dickinson’s internal
control, Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Dickinson’s internal
control,

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and thervefore, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies may oxist that were not identified, However, as described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs we ideniified certain deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstaternonts on a timely basis, A maferial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis, We
consider the deficiencies deseribed in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs listed
a5 2014-A and 2014-B t0 be material weaknesses,

www.eidebailly.com
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A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance, We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs listed as 2014-C and 2014-D to be significant deficiencies. '

Comphliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Dickinson's financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or ofher matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

City of Dickinson’s Responses to Findings

City of Dickinson’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Dickinson’s responses were not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on them.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control ot on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government duditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance, Accordingly, -
this communication is n1ot suitable for any other purpose.

é‘vﬁﬁdé L7

Bismarck, North Dakota
July 135, 2015
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Independent Aunditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report ¢n
" Internal Control Over Compliance; and Reportf on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Required by OMB Circular A~133

City Commissioners
.City of Dickinson
Dickinson, North Dakota

- Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
‘We have andited City of Dickinson’s complance with the types of compliance requirements described in
the OMB Circular 4-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of
City of Dickinson’s major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2014, City of Dickinson’s
major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility
‘Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility :

‘Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance of City of Dickinson’s major federal
program based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contalned in Govermment Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, dudits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
-plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Dickinson’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances,

‘We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Dickinson’s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, City of Dickinson complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major Federal program for the year
ended December 31, 2014,

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of City of Dickinson is responsible for establishing and maintaining offective internal
control over compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered City of Dickinson’s internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on compliance for the major federal progtam and to test and repott on internal control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Dickinson’s internal control over compliance.

4 deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of & control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requitement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over complionce is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a compliance requirement will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 4 significant deficiency in internal control over compliance
is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in interna}
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
materfal weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, However, material weaknesses may exist
that have nof been identified. '

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose,



Report en Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Dickinson as of and for the year

~ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise

the City of Dickinson’s basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated July 15, 2015,
which contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the
purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB
Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates direetly to the undetlying accounting and
other records used to prepate the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including

- comparing and reconciling such information directly to the undetlying accounting and other records used

to prepare the financial statemenits or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In

_ out opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material Tespects in

relation to the financial statements as a whole,

| éﬁ’/éﬁawy LeP

Bismarck, North Dakota
July 15, 2015




City of Dickinson
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Grantor Passed Pass Through
Through Program Girant Number CFDA # Fxpendifures

Department of Homeland Secutity

North Dakota Attorney General

Y2014 Homeland Security Fire A00436-001-2014-RQ 97.067 ¥ 8,072
FY2014 Homeland Security Police A0-434-001-2014-RQ 97.067 53,153
Total Depal;tment of Homeland Security 61,225

Department of Housing and Urban Development
North Dakota Department of Comimerce

Community Development Block Grants/

Heritage Hills B-12-DC-38-0001 14228 15,215
Total Department of Housing and Urban Development 15,215
Department of Justice

North Dakota Highway Patrol

Enforcing Underage Drinking Laws

Program 2200 16.727 288
Total Department of Justice 288

Department of Transportation

North Dakota Department of Transportation

Highway Safety Cluster
State and Corumunity Highway
Safety . PHSP4021205-04-08 20.600 : 2,262
Alcohol Impaired Driving
Countermeasures Incentive Grants PHSP4021305-04-07 20.601 7,313
Highway Safety Cluster Total 9,375
National Priority Safety Program HSPOP1408 & 1505 20616 - 683
Total Department of Transportation A 10,260
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City of Dickinson
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Grantor Passed

Through Program

Enviromnental Protection Agency
North Dakota Department of Health

Capitalization Grants for Clean Water
State Revolving Funds

Total Environmental Protection Agency

Total

Pass Through

Grant Number CFDA i Expenditures
380933-02 66.458 14,108,522
380933-03 66.458 22,596,725

36,705,247




City of Dickinson
~ Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
December 31, 2014

Note A — Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the City of
Dickinson, and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Prafit Organizations. City of Dickinson received federal awards both directly from federal agencies and
indirectly through pass-through entities,

Note B - Significant Accounting Policies

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards represents amounts expended from Federal Programs during the
year ended December 31, 2014 as determined based on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The amounts
teported on the schedule have been reconciled to and are in material agreement with amounts recarded in the
accounting records from which the financial statements have been reported.



City of Dickinson
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Section I — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of audifors' report issued

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness identified
Significant deficiency

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted

Federal Awards
Internal control over federal programs:
Material weakness identified

Significant deficiency

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance
for major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are tequired
to be reported in accordance with Circular
A-133, Section .510(a)

Identification of major programs;

Hame of Federal Program

Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Fund

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee

Unmodified
Yes
Yes
No
No
None Reported
Unmodified
-No
CFDA number
66.458
3 303,000
No
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City of Dickinson
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Section IT — Financial Statement Findings

- 2014-A Recording of ‘Fransactions
Material Weakness

Criteria - A good system of internal accounting control contemplates proper adjustments of all general ledger
accounts,

Condition — We identified misstatements in the City’s financial statements and schedule of expenditutes of federal
awards (SEFA) causing us to propose material audit adjustments,

Cause — Certain adjustinents were overlooked in the closing process; equipment acquisitions, construction in
progress expenditures, retainage payable amounts, expenditures that should be booked as accounts payable, and
one federal program (SRF) was not properly recorded In the general ledger or on the SEFA.

Effect - Inadequate internal controls over recording of transactions affects the City’s ability to detect
misstaterzents in amounts that would be material in relation fo the financial statements.

Recommendation — We recommend that all general tedger adjustments, land, equipment, leases and federal
program dollars are recorded in a timely manner for any differences noted.

. Management Response — We have made modifications to our accounting procedures to be certain these types of
. adjustments will be included during our year-end processes,

2014-B Preparation of Financial Statements
Material Weakness

Criteria ~ A good system of internal accounting contro! contemplates an adequate system for the preparation of
the financial statements, SEFA, and accompanying notes to the financial statements and SEFA,

Condition — The City does not have an internal control system designed to provide for the complete preparation of
the financial statements and accompanying notes to the financial statements. The City also does not have an
internal control system designed to provide for the complete preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards (SEFA) and accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. As auditors, we were
requested to draft the financial statements, SEFA, and accompanying notes to the financial statements and SEFA.

- The SEFA was materially misstated when given to the auditors in draft form as the amount of
expenditures shown for the State Revolving Loan Fund program were not correct for the fiscal year.

Cause — 'The City does not focus on providing training to employees to stay current with all accounting standards
and applications in order to prepare complefe financial statements and accompanying notes to the financial
statements and SEFA. City personnel do prepare preliminary, draft financial statements and SEFA for the year-
end audit, but the financial statements and SEFA do not include all of the required statements or notes to the
financial statements, ’

Effect — Inadequate control over financial reporting could result in a reasonable possibility that a matetial

misstaternent of the City’s financial statements, SEFA, and accompanying notes to the financial statements and
SEFA will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis,
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City of Dickinson
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Recommendation — The circumstance is not unusual in an organization of your size. It is the responsibility of
management and those charged with governance to make the decision whether to accept the degres of risk
associated with this condition because of cost or other considerations.

Management Response — Our finance depattment prepares preliminary financial statements and a SEFA for the
auditors in advance of their fieldwork which are then used by the auditors to produce the audited statements and
accompanying footnotes. Due to the size of our staff, we expect this will continue in the near future with plans to
address it for the long-term.

2014-C Segregation of Duties
Significant Deficiency

Criteria - A good system of internal accounting control contemplates an adequate segregation of dutles so that no
one individual handles a transaction from its inception to its completion and that there is proper approval of
transactions,

Condition — The City has a lack of segregation of duties in certain areas due to a limited staff. Examples of
specific transactions thaf are handled without adequate segregation of duties include the following:

- One individual receives cash receipts, enters the transactions in the accounting system, generates the
deposit ticket and occcasionally takes the deposit to the bank. The individual also has access to post and
make ¢changes to the transactions posted in the accounting software,

- One individual enters invoices in the accounting system, prints checks, can add new vendors to the
accounting system and completes the bank reconciliations.

- The City does not have a consistent process related to the approval of invoices by the appropriate
individuals in each department. Some individuals sign invoices indicating approval and some write or
stamp the general ledger coding on the invoice to indicate approval but there is not always a clear
indication of which employee is approving the invoice.

- Manual time cards are still being used to track employee hours. The accounting department has the
responsibility of entering new hire information, termination information, employee compensation
changes, processing payroll, and sending payroll information to the bank.

Cause — The City has not implemented internal control procedures to ensure there is adequate segregation of
duties related to all transactions handled in the accounting office and there are a limited number of employees to
segregate all of the duties.

Effect - Inadequate segregation of duties could adversely affect the City’s ability to detect potential material
misstatements to the financial statements or fraudulent activity in a timely manner,

Recommendation — While we recognize that your office staff may not be large enough to permit complete
segregation of duties in all respects for an effective system of internal control, all accounting functions should be
reviewed fo determine if additional segregation is feasible.

Management Response —~ We will review all aspects of our accounting functions to look for additional segregation
possibilities and we continually strive to improve efficiency and effectiveness of cur finance department.
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City of Dickinson
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2014

2014-P Department Controls over Cash
Significant Deficiency

Criteria — A good system of internal accounting controls contemplates an adequate audit paper trail and proper
segregation of duties to mitigate abuse or frand. ,

‘Condition — The City has a lack of effective internal controls related to the receipting process in vatious
departments of the City,

Cause — The departments have limited staff available to properly segregate the duties related to the cash receipt
process. The procedures followed for receipting cash also involve several manual steps which result in an
inadequate audit trail.

- Bffect — Inadequate conitrols over cash receipts could affect the City’s ability to detect errors or fraud.

Recommendation — We recommend the City eliminate as many manual procedures relfated to receipting cash as

possible. We also recommend the City review the cash receipt procedures in all departments to determine if there

- are confrols that can be implemented to adequately segregate the duties or to mitigate the risks due to limited staff
in the departments. '

. Management Response - All receipt processes have been reviewed and we are implementing audit frail systemns to
better detect errors or fraud.
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City of Dickinson
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2014

None

Seetion IIT — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Cosis
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City of Dickinson
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

None

Year Ended December 31, 2014
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